
 

 
Colfax  City  Council  Meetings  are  ADA  compliant.  If  you  need  special  assistance  to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346‐2313 at least 72 hours 
prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

August 12, 2015 

 

Page 1 of 2 

 

.. 
REGULAR	MEETING	AGENDA

August 12, 2012    Regular Session begins at 7:00 PM 
 

1) CONVENE OPEN SESSION_________________________________________________________________ 
1A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
1B.  Roll Call 
1C.  Approval of Agenda Order 

This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change to 
the agenda sequence. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion, accept the agenda as presented or amended. 

 

2) PRESENTATION_________________________________________________________________________ 
2A.  Presentation and Discussion:  Potential Joint Powers Authority (JPA) for mPower Home Energy Funding 

RECOMMENDATION:  Receive the presentation, discuss and direct staff as appropriate to bring back an 
agreement with Placer County to form a Joint Powers Authority for mPower Home Energy Funding.  

2B.  Presentation:  Malcolm Frost, President Placer Sierra Railroad Heritage Society, Railroad Days 
 

3) CONSENT CALENDAR____________________________________________________________________ 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket motion with a roll call 
vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless persons request specific items to be removed from the Consent Agenda 
for discussion and separate action.  Any items removed will be considered after the motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  If you wish 
to have an item pulled from the Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify the City staff. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Consent Calendar 

3A.   Minutes City Council Meeting of July 8, 2015 Meeting 
Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 8, 2015. 

3B.  Cash Summary Report June 2015 
Recommendation:  Receive and File. 

3C.  Coastland Contract for On‐call Site Inspection Services 
Recommendation:    Adopt  Resolution  29‐2015  Authorizing  the  City Manager  to  execute  a  contract with 
Coastland Engineering  for building  site  and  construction  inspection  services on an as needed basis not  to 
exceed $25,000. 

3D.  Bureau Veritas Contract for On‐call Building Inspection Services 
Recommendation:    Adopt  Resolution  30‐2015  authorizing  the  City Manager  to  execute  a  contract  with 
Bureau Veritas for Building Inspection services on an as needed basis not to exceed $50,000 

3E.  Certify  compliance  with  Fiscal  Year  2014‐2015  Appropriation  Limitation  and  Establish  Appropriation 
Limitation for Fiscal Year 2015‐2016 

  Recommendation:    Adopt  Resolution  31‐2015  certifying  compliance  with  the  2014‐2015  Appropriation 
Limitation and establishing the Appropriation Limitation for the 2015‐2016 fiscal year 

3F.  Quarterly Investment Report, 2nd Quarter 2015 
  Recommendation: Accept and File 
3G.  Approval of Lift Station #2 Phase 2 Pump Upgrade 
  Recommendation:  Authorize  the  City Manage  to  purchase  two  new  lift  station  pumps  in  the  amount  of 

$14,419.98 and have them installed for an amount not expected to exceed $5,000 
 

4) COUNCIL, STAFF AND OTHER REPORTS______________________________________________________ 
The  purpose  of  these  reports  is  to  provide  information  to  the  Council  and  public  on  projects,  programs,  and  issues  discussed  at 
committee meetings and other  items of Colfax  related  information.   No decisions will be made on  these  issues.    If a member of  the 
Council prefers  formal  action be  taken on  any  committee  reports or other  information,  the  issue will be placed on  a  future Council 

meeting agenda. 
4A.  Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items – All Councilmembers 
4B.  City Operations Update – City staff 
4C.   Additional Reports – Agency partners 



 

 
Colfax  City  Council  Meetings  are  ADA  compliant.  If  you  need  special  assistance  to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346‐2313 at least 72 hours 
prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

August 12, 2015 

 

Page 2 of 2 

5) PUBLIC COMMENT______________________________________________________________________ 
Members of the audience are permitted to address the Council on matters of concern to the public within the subject jurisdiction of the 
City Council that are not listed on this agenda.  Please make your comments as brief as possible.  Comments should not exceed three (3) 
minutes in length.  The Council cannot act on items not included on this agenda; however, if action is required it will be referred to staff. 
 

6) PUBLIC HEARING_______________________________________________________________________ 
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC: City Council or Planning Commission will take the following actions when considering a matter scheduled for hearing:

1. Open the public hearing  2. Presentation by staff

3. Council comments and questions  4. Presentation, when applicable, by applicant or appellant 

5. Accept public testimony  6. Council comments and questions

7. When applicable, applicant or appellant rebuttal period 8. Close public hearing. (No public comment is taken after the hearing is closed.)

9. City Council or Planning Commission action 

Public hearings that are continued will be announced. The continued public hearing will be listed on a subsequent Council Meeting Agenda and posting of 
that agenda will serve as notice. 

The City Council encourages the participation of the public. To ensure the expression of all points of view, and to maintain the efficient conduct of the City’s 
business, members of  the public who wish  to address  the Council  shall do  so  in an orderly manner.   The audience  is asked  to  refrain  from positive or 
negative actions such as yelling, clapping or  jeering that may  intimidate other members of the public from speaking.   Members of the public wishing to 
speak may request recognition from the presiding officer by raising his or her hand, and stepping to the podium when requested to do so. 
 

Recess Meeting as City Council and Convene as Planning Commission‐ The council will convene as the Planning  
 

Commission for the purpose of considering approval of Agenda Item 6A. 
6A.   Design Review Permit for the Canyon Creek Self Storage Facility 

STAFF PRESENTATION: Amy Feagans, Planning Director 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: PLANNING COMMISSION ‐ Adopt Resolution 33‐2015 Approving the Design Review 
Permit for the Canyon Creek Self Storage Facility to be located on a 3.83‐ acre parcel (APN 101‐132‐043) in 
the Highway Commercial (CH) Zone. 

 

Reconvene as City Council‐ The council will re‐convene as the City Council for the remainder of the meeting. 
 

7) COUNCIL BUSINESS_____________________________________________________________________ 
7A.  Process Recommendation for Encouraging Downtown Building Murals 

STAFF PRESENTATION:  Mark Miller, City Manager 
RECOMMENDATIONS: Discuss and Direct Staff 

7B.  Grand Jury Response 
STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve Letter of Response  

7C.  Recruitment Status, Job Descriptions and Salary Schedules for Chief Plant Operator, Technical Services 
Administrator, Community Services Director and Administrative Assistant 

  STAFF PRESENTATION:  Mark Miller, City Manager 
  RECOMMENDATION:  Receive staff presentation, discuss and approve Resolution 34‐2015 as appropriate. 
 

8) ADJOURNMENT________________________________________________________________________ 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and posted this agenda 

at Colfax City Hall and Colfax Post Office. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Administrative Remedies must be exhausted prior to action being initiated in a court of law.  If you challenge City Council action in court, you may be 
limited  to  raising only  those  issues  you or  someone  else  raised  at  a public hearing described  in  this notice/agenda, or  in written  correspondence 
delivered to the City Clerk of the City of Colfax at, or prior to, said public hearing. 

 



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 

For the August 12, 2015 Council Meeting 

 

 

FROM:  Mark Miller, City Manager 

PREPARED BY:  Staff 

SUBJECT:  Presentation and Discussion on Potential Joint Powers Authority for MPower 
Home Energy Funding 

 
 

X N/A     FUNDED    UN‐FUNDED  AMOUNT:  N/A  FROM FUNDS:  N/A 

 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive staff presentation, discuss and direct a draft Joint Powers Authority 
agreement be brought back to City Council as appropriate. 

 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
The County has approached the City of Colfax regarding the potential to join in the creation 
of  a  Joint  Powers  Authority  to  be  able  to  expand  the  current  homeowner  assistance 
MPOWER  program.   A  Joint  Powers Authority  is  a  typical  vehicle  used  to  cost‐effectively 
provide  services  that  are  delivered  beyond  a  single  jurisdiction.    Colfax’s  current  Risk 
Management pool – SCORE, is an example Joint Powers Authority. 
 
The  establishment  of  a  joint  powers  authority  is  necessary  for  the  County  to  facilitate 
efficient  program  administration  and  expansion  of  the MPOWER  Program  related  to  the 
issuance of bonds for the MPOWER Program. Currently, the MPOWER Placer program serves 
all jurisdictions within the boundaries of Placer County including the cities of Auburn, Colfax, 
Lincoln,  Loomis, Rocklin  and Roseville,  as well  as  all unincorporated  areas.  The MPOWER 
Placer program was established as an assessment district program under AB 811 in 2009‐10. 
MPOWER also serves the City of Folsom through a program that was separately established 
as a community facilities district program under SB555 in 2013‐14.  
 

ITEM 2A
1 of 4



2 
 

MPOWER Placer has utilized  the Placer County Public Financing Authority  (PCPFA)  for  the 
issuance of the MPOWER Bonds. The PCPFA  is comprised of the County and the Successor 
Agency to the former Redevelopment Agency (Successor Agency). The Successor Agency will 
cease to exist in 2036 when the Successor Agency bonds mature and, will in turn, cause the 
PCPFA to be extinguished as the County will be the sole member. Therefore, another issuer 
must be identified, as MPOWER bonds issued after 2016 will outlive the PCPFA. 
 
A potential proposal is for the County enter into a joint power of authority agreement with 
the City of Colfax to establish the Sierra Valley Energy Authority (SVEA) for the  issuance of 
MPOWER  Bonds  and  to  facilitate  efficient  and  cost  effective  ongoing  administration  and 
expansion of  the MPOWER  Program.    The County  and  the City of Colfax will be  the  two 
primary members with  voting  authority.  The  JPA  agreement provides  for  the  addition of 
non‐voting  members  for  the  purpose  of  implementing  the  MPOWER  Program  in  other 
jurisdictions.  As a result, other jurisdictions will be able to authorize the implementation of 
the MPOWER Program by simply adopting a resolution, instead of going through the process 
of district formation and bond issuance, both of which require a series of administrative and 
official actions over legally imposed time frames at a significantly higher cost. 
 
Staff  requests  the  City  Council  to  discuss  the  potential  formation  of  the  Joint  Powers 
Authority and direct staff to bring back a draft agreement as appropriate. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: MPower Program Description 
 

ITEM 2A
2 of 4



Abou

MPOWER

agricultur

conservat

to eligible

well as th

We believ

of theMPO

reliance o

The progr

advantag

energy an

utility com

may also 

We provi

experienc

assist you

Once you

Because t

assist you

ut Us 

R provides fix

ral and multi

tion retrofits

e properties i

he City of Fols

ve that invest

OWER progr

on foreign fue

ram works in

e of available

nd water effic

mpany rebat

 qualify. 

de exception

ced guidance

u in determin

u apply they w

they have com

u in making s

xed-rate, no m

ifamily prope

 and renewab

in Placer Cou

som. 

tment in the 

ram is to low

els, stimulate

n partnership

e rebates and

ciency impro

es. However,

nal customer 

e in the select

ning whether

will continue 

mbined expe

sure all aspec

money down

erty owners w

ble energy sy

untys six inco

 local econom

er energy bil

e the local ec

p with all of t

d incentives. W

vements and

, since there’

 service. MPO

tion of retrofi

r or not your p

 to work clos

rience of 40+

cts of your pr

n financing to

who want to 

ystems. The p

orporated cit

my is the first

ls, increase e

conomy, and 

the regional u

We have an e

d residential i

s no one-size

OWER staff is

fit projects. O

property qua

ely with you 

+ years in bu

roject run sm

o residential,

 install energ

program was

ties and town

t step toward

energy and w

 reduce green

utility provid

extensive list

improvemen

e-fits-all cate

s available to

Our Program 

alifies before 

 throughout t

uilding planni

moothly. 

 commercial

gy efficiency a

s launched in

ns, unincorpo

d economic re

water efficienc

nhouse gas em

ders to help cu

t of eligible n

nts, many of w

egory, a custo

o answer que

 Specialists w

 you submit 

the applicati

ing and cons

l, industrial, 

and water 

n 2010 and is 

orated areas, 

ecovery. The 

cy, reduce 

missions. 

ustomers tak

non-residenti

which qualify

omized system

stions and of

will personall

an applicatio

on process. 

struction, the

 

 open 

 as 

 goal 

ke 

ial 

y for 

m 

ffer 

ly 

on. 

ey can 

ITEM 2A
3 of 4



 
Save Money · Conserve Energy · Create Jobs 

MPOWER is a regional program to promote more efficient use of water and energy, enable property 

owners to reduce energy costs, and strengthen our local economy through job creation. 

Now, more than ever, residential and non-residential property owners are looking for ways to save 

money on their energy bills; reduce their impact on the environment; and stimulate the local 

economy. With the help ofMPOWER (Money for Property Owner Water and Energy efficiency 

Retrofitting), that goal couldn’t be easier.MPOWER will finance energy efficiency improvements and 

energy generation systems such as solar photovoltaic to qualified property owners, with no upfront 

costs. 

The financing model is called Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE). The financed amount is 

amortized and the annual amount due is added to your property tax bill each year until paid in full. If 

the property is sold the equipment and the unpaid amount stay with the property. 

The money you save on water and energy could be more than enough to repay the additional amount 

on your property tax bill. 

“Saving energy is real money in your pocket that you can use for other needs”. 

A wide variety of improvements are eligible for MPOWER financing including: Envelope Sealing & 

Insulation, Lighting, HVAC Upgrade, Water Heating, Water Conservation, Renewable Energy, and 

Custom Measures. 

 

 
 

ITEM 2A
4 of 4



City of Colfax 1
City Council Minutes July 8, 2015
 

City of Colfax 
City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting of Wednesday, July 8, 2015 
City Hall Council Chambers 
33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 

 

1 CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER
The Regular Council Meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM by Mayor Douglass. 
1A. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Melba Delfino, City Resident. 
1B. Roll Call:  

Councilmembers present:  Delfino, Douglass, Harvey, Hesch and Parnham  
City Clerk Cassidy explained that the League of California Cities requires City Council 
to designate a voting delegate and an alternate for the League Conference held in 
September.  At the June 24, 2015 meeting, Council agreed that Mayor Douglass will be 
the voting delegate and an alternate would be selected from other Councilmembers 
registered to attend.  Mayor Pro Tem Parnham registered for the Conference, so she 
requested that Council confirm his appointment as Alternate Voting Delegate.   

On a motion by Councilmember Delfino, seconded by Councilmember Hesch, the 
City Council appointed Mayor Pro Tem Parnham as the Alternate Voting Delegate 
to the League of California Cities 2015 Conference. 
AYES:   Delfino, Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham 
NOES:   None 
ABSENT: None 

1C. Approval of Agenda: 
Councilmember Delfino suggested moving Item 6A to the beginning of the agenda so the 
owner of the property that will be addressed does not need to wait.  City Manager Miller 
explained that Item 6A is an information only item and the owner is not present at the 
meeting.  There wasn’t a need to alter the order of the agenda. 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Parnham, seconded by Councilmember Delfino, 
the City Council approved the agenda. 
AYES:   Delfino, Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham 
NOES:   None 
ABSENT: None 
 

2 PRESENTATION 
2A. Colfax Area Non-Profit Update – Jewell DeLapp, President, Colfax Garden 

Club:  Garden Club Tour July 18th and Club Update 
Jewell Delapp described the Colfax Garden Club as a dynamic group of men and women 
who are passionate about gardening or who want to learn more about gardening.  The 
Garden Club holds educational meetings from September to June, hosts fieldtrips and 
serves the community by maintaining five of the garden plots in town as well as planting 
and watering the hanging baskets.  The Club has three fundraisers each year; two plant 
sales in Spring and Fall and the Summer Garden Tour.  This year the tour will be July 18 
from 9:00am to 4:00pm.  Please join them for a fun day touring 7 local gardens.  Tickets 
are $20. 
Council thanked Ms. DeLapp and the Colfax Garden Club for their contributions to the 
community.  

ITEM 3A
1 of 5



City of Colfax 2
City Council Minutes July 8, 2015
 

2B. Courage Worldwide presentation – Child Trafficking Prevention 
The Presenters for this topic were not able to attend the meeting.  Mayor Douglass invited 
everyone to a tour of their facility at 2:00PM on Thursday, July 9, 2015. 
 

3 CONSENT CALENDAR 
3A.  Minutes of the City Council Meeting of June 24, 2015 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 24, 2015. 
3B. Cash Summary Report, May, 2015 

Recommendation:  Receive and File. 
3C. Work Order to Holdrege and Kull for Construction Materials Testing for the 

UPRR Ped Xing and Bike Path Improvement Project 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 28-2015 Authorizing a Work Order for 
Construction Materials Testing Services for the UPRR Ped Xing and Bike Path 
Improvement Project with Holdrege and Kull in an amount not to exceed $8,505. 

Mayor Pro Tem Parnham asked that the minutes be removed from the Consent Calendar 
so that he could abstain from the vote, having been absent from the meeting.   

On a motion by Councilmember Hesch, seconded by Councilmember Harvey, the 
City Council approved Items 3B and 3C of the Consent Calendar. 
AYES:   Delfino, Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham 
NOES:   None 
ABSENT: None 

Melba Delfino questioned the wording on page 6 of the Minutes that states “Ms. Delfino 
objected to the process of hiring without a councilmember on the selection committee, 
expressing concern that Council, not the City Manager, is responsible for the operation of 
the City.” She would like the statement to be corrected to say that the City Council is 
elected by the citizens to do a job for the citizens.  Council has an important role to play 
in ensuring that the City is well managed and needs to take the job seriously.  City 
Manager Miller stated that her comments would be noted in the Minutes for the current 
meeting. 

On a motion by Councilmember Delfino, seconded by Councilmember Hesch, the 
City Council approved the Minutes of June 24, 2015. 
AYES:   Delfino, Douglass, Harvey, Hesch 
NOES:   None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN: Parnham 

 

4 COUNCIL, STAFF AND OTHER REPORTS
4A. Committee Reports and Informational Items – All Council Members  
Mayor Pro Tem Parnham 

 Reported from the League of California Cities Mayors and Councilmember 
Executive Forum held June 24-26th in Monterey.  Topics included City Council 
and City Manager relationships and how to conduct a meeting.  He stated that 
Council and the Public should only address the Council, not staff or other 
members of the public.  Councilmembers should avoid having a dialogue with the 
public.  If something requires action, it should be placed on a future agenda. 

ITEM 3A
2 of 5



City of Colfax 3
City Council Minutes July 8, 2015
 

 He reminded everyone that despite the drought, this is a particularly bad year for 
West Nile Virus.  Watch for standing water and call the Mosquito District if you 
see an issue. 

Councilmember Delfino 
 Asked Mayor Pro Tem if there were any reports of dead birds and reminded 

everyone that the district will provide mosquito fish on request. 
 Attended the Fire Safe Council Meeting.  He handed out a letter to Council written 

by Fire Chief Paulus to the Superintendent of Roads in charge of the I-80 Corridor.  
He suggested that Council send a letter of support.   

Council directed staff to write a letter supporting the fuel reduction recommendations 
in the Fire Chief’s letter. 

Mayor Douglass 
 Met with the High School Principal and the Football Coach.  Both are eager to 

partner students with the City.  Students are available to volunteer for events. 
 Attended the Chocolate, Wine and Art Indulgence event and met a dance troupe 

that would be willing to entertain at an event. 
 At the Chamber mixer, he met a music group that would be available to perform at 

events also. 
 On Friday, July 10, at 5:30PM, he will meet at the Depot with about 40 French 

Foreign Exchange students and their parents.  Councilmember Delfino expressed 
interest in helping prepare for the “meet and greet”. 

Councilmember Harvey 
 Nothing to report. 

Councilmember Hesch 
 Reported that the extra room in the Depot that could be rented is about 260 square 

feet.  The rental rate of $300 would be enough to pay for all repair and 
maintenance on the building. 

 He is on the recruitment committee to replace the Director of the Placer County 
Air Quality Control District. 

 The July 3rd event provided a good time for all. 
 He is looking forward to an update regarding purchasing a shade structure for the 

playground. 
 He has spent much time researching for the discussion tonight. 
 The Union Pacific Railroad had considered adding a 3rd rail to Auburn for 

passengers but this will not be feasible and discussion has been suspended. 
 Commented that last year he had the privilege of greeting the French students and 

found it a great and rewarding task.  
 

3B. Operations Updates – City Staff 
City Manager Miller  

 Construction for the Grass Valley Street/Railroad Crossing Project is set to start 
Monday, July 13. 

 The new chairs in Council Chambers are surplus from the County that the City 
obtained free of charge. 

ITEM 3A
3 of 5



City of Colfax 4
City Council Minutes July 8, 2015
 

 Colfax Elementary School Summer Festival will be held on Saturday, July 25th.  
Donated free school supplies and prizes will be available for local children from 
10:00am-12:00pm at the School Gym. 

 Reminder that Railroad Days will be on September 12th and 13th.  Be sure to 
volunteer if you can help the organizers of the event. 

 Staff has no update on the shade structure as quotes have not been received. 
3C. Additional Reports – Agency Partners 
Frank Klein, Colfax Chamber of Commerce President 

 Reported that he had mixed reviews from the 3rd of July event but that overall it 
was a success.  About 4000 people attended throughout the day, businesses stayed 
busy, 50 vendors were lined up along Main Street, the band was well received and 
the parades were a success.  The Mayor was very helpful.  To draw larger crowds 
it is important to have a laser show or fireworks. 

 The next Chamber Mixer will be Tuesday, July 21st at Colfax Realty from 
5:30pm-7:30pm. 

Council commended Mr. Klein for a job well done and the great effort put forth by 
the Chamber volunteers. 

 

5    PUBLIC COMMENT 
Jeannie Claxton, 285 Alpine Way: 

 Suggested that the fireworks display be scheduled in December for the Winterfest 
event.  It would draw people to Colfax without the competition of other events. 

 She thanked the City for looking into a shade structure at the playground. 
 

6 COUNCIL BUSINESS 
6A. California State Water Board Storm Water Strategic Initiative Draft – Posted 

June 25, 2015 
Councilmember Harvey introduced the discussion stating that all citizens need to read 
this draft plan.  The state is proposing regulating storm water run-off in the same way that 
sewer is regulated.  Cities will be required to collect run-off and process it through 
Wastewater Treatment Plants.  It will be very expensive for Cities, so citizens need to pay 
attention to the regulators.  Council discussed the issue with the consensus that this 
program will be very expensive and should not apply to rural towns.  Unfortunately, 
small rural towns such as Colfax are often the first that are required to comply with new 
regulations. 
Public comments were from Mike Garabedian with the Friends of the North Fork, Melba 
Delfino, and Foxey McCleary.   
Councilmembers were unanimous in their concerns about the potential costs to Colfax 
and asked staff to follow the issue. 
6B. Informational Drawing for New Building at 58 N. Main Street 
City Manager Miller explained that a conceptual drawing of the proposed project is 
included in the agenda packet.  This project will be the first new building constructed in 
the historic district in 50 years.  Staff will bring the design to Council for formal approval 
soon. 
 
 

ITEM 3A
4 of 5



City of Colfax 5
City Council Minutes July 8, 2015
 

6C. Staff Hiring Process 
Councilmember Hesch began the discussion regarding the hiring process stating that the 
big picture involves determining if the City will be managed as most General Law Cities 
with a City Manager/Council model or if the City will adopt a more City 
Administrator/Council model similar to a Charter City.  Council discussed the issue and 
referred to the 1985 Employee Handbook which states that “Council shall have direct 
authority for all hiring, firing, disciplinary action and the setting of all compensation for City 
employees…. By resolution the City Council may authorize a representative to discharge 
these duties on its behalf.”  They also referred to the ordinance (421) delineating the job 
description of the City Manager which states that the “City Manager shall appoint competent, 
qualified officers and employees to the administrative service and to dismiss, suspend and 
discipline such officers and employees, consistent with the policies of the City Council”.  
City Attorney Cabral explained that the 1985 Ordinance details a Council Manager form of 
Government and Council can determine the amount of input they want in the hiring process.  
Public comments were from Stacey Younggren, Jenny Duncan, Shirley Alexander, and 
Jeannie Claxton.  Ms. Younggren asserted that the City should follow the employee 
handbook.  Ms. Duncan, Ms. Alexander, and Ms. Claxton each spoke in support of allowing 
the City Manager to make hiring decisions.   
City Manager Miller reminded Council that the City is in the midst of recruiting for one of 
the most crucial positions in the City and he needs clear direction from Council.  The City 
has a reputation among local candidates because of a perception of Council interference and 
politicizing positions.  He requested that Council give him clear direction.   
Councilmember Hesch stated that he would like the City Manager to have the right to hire 
and discipline employees without Council interference.  Councilmember Delfino would like 
to be part of the process as an observer.  Mayor Douglass stated that he places full trust in the 
current City Manager.  Mayor Pro Tem Parnham would like to allow the City Manager to do 
his job. To have Councilmembers sitting in on the hiring process is micro-managing the City 
Manager and it is confusing to employees and devastating to morale.  Councilmember 
Harvey wants assurance that hiring will be in compliance with the current handbook. 
 
7   ADJOURNMENT 
Mayor Douglass adjourned the meeting at 8:52pm and stated the second meeting in July, 
July 22, 2015, is canceled.  
 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 12th day of August 2015. 

ITEM 3A
5 of 5



 
 
 
 
 
 
   

FOR THE AUGUST 12, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM:  Mark Miller, City Manager
PREPARED BY:  Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director

DATE:  August 3, 2015 
SUBJECT:  City of Colfax Cash Summary Report: June 2015 

 

X  N/A     FUNDED     UN‐FUNDED  AMOUNT:   FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and File City of Colfax Cash Summary Report: June 2015. 

SUMMARY: 
Staff recommends that the Council accepts and files the Colfax Cash Summary Report: for June 2015. 
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:   
These monthly  financial reports  include General Fund Unassigned Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of Colfax 
Cash Summary Report (with supporting documentation).  The reports are prepared monthly on a cash basis and 
are  reconciled  to  the  General  Ledger  accounting  system,  previous  reports  and  bank  statements.    Detailed 
budget comparisons are provided as a mid‐year report and also as part of the proposed budget process each 
year. 
 

The purpose of  the  reports  is  to provide  status of  funds  and  transparency  for  council  and  the public of  the 
financial transactions of the City. 
 

CONCLUSION:   
The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in June 2015.   
 

Monthly highlights include: 

 General Fund Reserved Cash  is tracking consistently with previous years and our General Fund 
Reserve  balance  has  been met  consistently  for  the  past  six months.    The  increase  in  Fund 
Balance is primarily due to higher than anticipated receipts of sales tax revenues as noted in the 
Annual budget review. 

 June  receipts  included  an  unanticipated  payment  of  $28,900  from  the  State  of  California  for 
State mandated reimbursements from 2001‐2003. 

 Upcoming expenses include quarterly payment for sheriff services (July) and bi‐annual payment 
for purchases on Winner property (August). 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs 
a. Cash Analysis – Balance 
b. Expenses by Month 
c. Revenues by Month 

2. Cash Activity Reports  
a. Cash Summary 
b. Cash Transaction Report – by individual fund 
c. Check Register Report  
d. Daily Cash Summary Report 

ITEM 3B
1 of 11



IT
E

M
 3B

2 of 11



IT
E

M
 3B

3 of 11



IT
E

M
 3B

4 of 11



ITEM 3B
5 of 11



ITEM 3B
6 of 11



ITEM 3B
7 of 11



ITEM 3B
8 of 11



ITEM 3B
9 of 11



ITEM 3B
10 of 11



ITEM 3B
11 of 11



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 

FOR THE AUGUST 8, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM:  Mark Miller, City Manager 

PREPARED By:  Staff 

SUBJECT:  Coastland Engineering Consultant Contract for Site Inspection Services 

 

  N/A   X  FUNDED     UN‐FUNDED  AMOUNT: $25, 000  FROM FUNDS: 100, 400 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 29‐2015 Authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract 
with Coastland Engineering for building site and construction  inspection services on an as needed basis 
not to exceed $25,000. 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND DISCUSSION: 
 
The current vacancy  in the Community Services Director position provides an opportunity to contract services 
for a Building Site and Construction Inspector on an as needed basis.  The City has contracted with Coastland to 
provide an onsite building inspector.  Coastland is a regional engineering firm which provides services including, 
inspection and construction management services.  They have provided the services of Travis Williams, who has 
been conducting site inspection services for the City at the Dollar General project.  The Coastland contract will 
allow for inspection services as needed and requested by the City. 
 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 

1) Resolution 29‐2015 
2) Coastland Contract  

ITEM 3C
1 of 16



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 29-2015 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH 
COASTLAND ENGINEERING FOR BUILDING SITE AND CONSTRUCTION 

INSPECTION SERVICES ON AN AS NEEDED BASIS NOT TO EXCEED $25,000  
 

  

Whereas, the City of Colfax needs the services of a Building Site and Construction 
inspector on an on-call basis; and 
 

 Whereas, Coastland Engineering is a qualified firm for supplying Building Site and 
Inspection personnel; and 
 

 Whereas, Coastland Engineering has proposed the services of Travis Williams who 
has over nine years of construction experience on capital improvement projects and 
current inspection certification; and, 
 

 Whereas, Coastland Engineering has presented a proposal for these services at a cost 
consistent with market rates,  
 

 Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved And Declared by the City Council of the City of 
Colfax authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract with Coastland Engineering for 
Building Site and Construction Inspection services on an as needed basis not-to-exceed 
$25, 000.  
  

 The foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 12th day of August, 2015 by the following vote 
of the Council: 
 

 AYES:   
 NOES:      
 ABSENT:  
 ABSTAIN:  
 
        ____________________________ 
        Kim A. Douglass, Mayor  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk  

ITEM 3C
2 of 16



 
 
 
 
 
 
August 5, 2015 
 
Mark Miller-City Manager 
City of Colfax 
33 S. Main Street 
Colfax, CA  95713 
 
Subject:  As Needed Civil Site Inspection Services 
 
Coastland is pleased to submit these qualifications to provide Inspection Services to the City of 
Colfax on an as-needed, on-call basis for various building projects in the City.  In Northern 
California, Coastland is well known for our municipal contract engineering services.  Our team 
has provided constructability review, construction management and inspection for a multitude of 
municipal agencies.  Based on this extensive on-call and staff augmentation experience we 
understand the challenges facing the City of Colfax, including staffing and budget constraints.  
Our full-service team successfully balances our clients' needs by assigning readily available and 
highly qualified staff to each project. 
   
The City would benefit from an experienced team that is already familiar with the local 
conditions, through our work in Placer County, and has an excellent reputation in contract 
municipal services and staff augmentation.  Our firm has a track record of delivering consistent 
services in response to varying market conditions and demands. 
 
Our proposed inspector, Mr. Travis Williams, has over nine years of construction experience 
on capital improvement projects.  He has managed a variety of construction projects including 
transportation projects involving coordination with Caltrans and railroads and involving complex 
environmental constraints.  He is also a certified QSD/QSP and EIT.  Mr. Williams is located in 
our Auburn office and will be the day-to-day point of contact for the City of Colfax inspection 
services.  He can be reached by phone (530.888.9929) or email (williams@coastlandcivil.com). 
 
Coastland’s team of inspectors are highly seasoned and experienced professionals that can 
meet the City’s needs be they construction services for roads, bridges, drainage systems, and 
related structures; QSD/QSP Water Quality Monitoring and SWPPP coordination; or managing 
the specific requirements of federally funded projects. As our company focuses on only serving 
municipalities, we bring an understanding of the complex nature of projects and funding 
guidelines that many other firms don’t have.  
 
Because Coastland serves public agencies exclusively, we do not face any potential conflicts of 
interest in serving the City of Colfax.  As CEO of Coastland, I am authorized to bind the firm 
contractually. 

ITEM 3C
3 of 16

http://www.coastlandcivil.com/
mailto:williams@coastlandcivil.com


 
  
Coastland is excited with this opportunity and appreciates your consideration of our 
qualifications. We are committed to providing high quality and responsive services to our clients.  
Please feel free to contact me by phone (707.571.8005) or email (wanger@coastlandcivil.com) 
if you have any questions or are in need of additional information. 
 
Sincerely, 
  
 
 
John Wanger, PE 
Principal  

ITEM 3C
4 of 16

mailto:wanger@coastlandcivil.com


ITEM 3C
5 of 16



ITEM 3C
6 of 16



ITEM 3C
7 of 16



ITEM 3C
8 of 16



ITEM 3C
9 of 16



ITEM 3C
10 of 16



ITEM 3C
11 of 16



ITEM 3C
12 of 16



ITEM 3C
13 of 16



EXHIBIT A 
Scope of Services 

 
 
UNDERSTANDING 
 
Based on our meeting with the City Manager, Coastland understands that the City needs 
assistance with inspecting on-site and off-site work performed by building contractors within the 
City. This inspection work will be provided on an as-needed basis in support of and in 
conjunction with the City’s Building and Public Works Departments. 
 

On-Site Inspection — On-site inspection will involve inspecting civil site improvements 
such as grading, paving, water and sewer utilities, retaining walls and other civil 
improvements. Inspections are needed to ensure that the builder constructs on-site 
improvements in general conformance with the approved project plans. 
 
Off-Site Inspection — Off-site inspection will involve inspecting any improvements, 
alterations or modifications within the public right of way such as street improvements, 
pavement restoration for utility work, sidewalks and pedestrian ramps as well as water, 
sewer and storm drain improvements. 

 
Based on this understanding of the City’s needs, our proposed scope of services is as follows. 
 
 
FIELD INSPECTIONS 
 
Our inspector will coordinate with City staff and contractors to ascertain and perform inspections 
at key points in the construction process. Coastland’s inspector will be accessible to the City at 
all times through the use of email, cellular phones and in-person to help maintain close 
communication. 
 
When on site, Coastland’s inspector will examine construction activities and work performed to 
ensure that the work adheres to the City-approved plans, City standards and standards of 
outside agencies as they may apply. 
 
Coastland will review the approved plans and specifications to ensure the work is of good 
quality and meets the general requirements of the contract documents.  Coastland will 
immediately report any deviation from the approved plans to the City.   
 
When on site, our inspector will review the contractor’s traffic control operations to make certain 
that public access is maintained during construction. 
 
  

ITEM 3C
14 of 16



 
DOCUMENTATION 

 
Complete and accurate record keeping is an essential component of inspection. After each 
inspection our inspector will provide inspection reports and photographs of construction 
activities to City staff.  Reports will describe the contractor’s efforts, specific work being done 
and relevant points raised by the contractor that may require the City’s consideration and 
response.  We will also note and point out to City staff important conversations, safety issues or 
accidents, or other concerns during the course of the project. 
 
Additionally, our inspector will document pre-construction conditions with a photo log to verify 
the public right of way is restored to the extent possible following construction.   
 
 
OPTIONAL TASKS 
 
At the City’s request Coastland can also provide the following services: 
 
 Full-time, on-site inspection 
 Construction management services 
 Building Department plan check & inspection services 
 Structural inspection 

ITEM 3C
15 of 16



 
 

SCHEDULE OF HOURLY RATES 
July 01, 2015 through June 30, 2016 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 

Principal Engineer $175-195/hour 

Supervising Engineer $155-175/hour 

Senior Engineer $135-155/hour 

Associate Engineer $120-135/hour 

Assistant Engineer  $95-120/hour 

Junior Engineer  $95-115/hour 

Principal Designer $135-145/hour 

Engineering Assistant $105-135/hour 

Senior Engineering Technician $115-130/hour 

Engineering Technician $100-115/hour 

Engineering Aide $85-95/hour 

Resident Engineer $140-165/hour 

Construction Manager $135-150/hour 

Construction Inspector* $110-125/hour 

Construction Administrator $75-85/hour 

Building Official $135-160/hour 

Building Plan Check Engineer $135-155/hour 

Plans Examiner  $95-125/hour 

Building Inspector $90-115/hour 

Building Technician $75-85/hour 

 
CLERICAL $75-85/hour 
VEHICLE $12-16/hour 
MILEAGE $0.65/mile** 
OUTSIDE SERVICES Cost + 15% 
MATERIALS Cost + 15% 
 

 Computer time is included in the hourly rates used above. 

 Consultation in connection with litigation and court appearances will be quoted separately. 

 Additional billing classifications may be added to the above listing during the year as new positions 
are created. 

* Includes services subject to prevailing wage rates. 
** Mileage rates are subject to change based on fuel cost increases 

ITEM 3C
16 of 16



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 

FOR THE AUGUST 8, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM:  Mark Miller, City Manager 

PREPARED By:  Staff 

SUBJECT:  Bureau Veritas Consultant Contract for Building Inspection Services 

 

  N/A   X  FUNDED     UN‐FUNDED  AMOUNT: $50, 000  FROM FUNDS: 100/400 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 30‐2015 authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract 
with Bureau Veritas for Building Inspection services on an as needed basis not to exceed $50,000 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND DISCUSSION: 
 
The current vacancy  in the Community Services Director position provides an opportunity to contract services 
for a Building Inspector on an as needed basis.  The City has contracted with Bureau Veritas to provide an onsite 
building  inspector.   Bureau Veritas  is a respected  leader  in testing,  inspection and certification services.   They 
have provided  the  services of  John Brownlee, with 20+  years of  inspection experience  in  the  Sierra  foothills 
region.   Mr. Brownlee  is conducting  inspections as they are required and providing much needed updating to 
the Building Department systems.  The Bureau Veritas contract is currently capped at $5,000 pending approval 
from City Council to extend services on an ongoing, as needed basis.  The position will also be available for code 
enforcement  and  nuisance  abatement work.    Funding  is  through  the  General  Fund with  revenue  available 
through increasing building permit activity. 
 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 

1) Resolution 30‐2015 
2) Bureau Veritas Contract  

ITEM 3D
1 of 18



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 30-2015 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH 
BUREAU VERITAS FOR BUILDING INSPECTION SERVICES ON AN AS 

NEEDED BASIS NOT TO EXCEED $50,000  
 

  

Whereas, the City of Colfax needs the services of a Building inspector on an on-call 
basis; and 
 

 Whereas, Bureau Veritas is a qualified firm for supplying Building Inspection 
personnel; and 
 

 Whereas, Bureau Veritas has proposed the services of John Brownlee who has over 
twenty year of experience as a building inspector and current inspection certifications; and, 
 

 Whereas, Bureau Veritas has presented a proposal for these services at a cost 
consistent with market rates,  
 

 Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved And Declared by the City Council of the City of 
Colfax authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract with Bureau Veritas for Building 
Inspection services on an as needed basis not-to-exceed $50, 000.  
  

 The foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 12th day of August, 2015 by the following vote 
of the Council: 
 

 AYES:   
 NOES:      
 ABSENT:  
 ABSTAIN:  
 
        ____________________________ 
        Kim A. Douglass, Mayor  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk  

ITEM 3D
2 of 18



ITEM 3D
3 of 18



ITEM 3D
4 of 18



ITEM 3D
5 of 18



ITEM 3D
6 of 18



ITEM 3D
7 of 18



ITEM 3D
8 of 18



ITEM 3D
9 of 18



ITEM 3D
10 of 18



ITEM 3D
11 of 18



ITEM 3D
12 of 18



ITEM 3D
13 of 18



ITEM 3D
14 of 18



ITEM 3D
15 of 18



ITEM 3D
16 of 18



ITEM 3D
17 of 18



ITEM 3D
18 of 18



 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 

For The August 12, 2015 Council Meeting 
 

FROM:  Mark Miller, City Manager

PREPARED BY:  Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director

DATE:  July 22, 2015 

SUBJECT:  1. Certify compliance with the Fiscal Year 2014‐2015 Appropriation 
Limitation 

2. Establish Appropriation  Limitation for the  Fiscal Year 2015‐2016 
 

X  N/A     FUNDED     UN‐FUNDED  AMOUNT:   FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 31‐2015 certifying compliance with the 2014‐2015 
Appropriation Limitation and establishing the Appropriation Limitation for the 2015‐2016 fiscal year. 

 

SUMMARY: 
In  1979,  California  voters  approved  Proposition  4,  an  initiative  that  added  Article  XIII  B  to  the  California 
Constitution.  This  constitutional  amendment,  known  as  the  Gann  Initiative,  placed  limits  on  the  growth  of 
expenditures for publicly funded programs. Division 9 of Title 1, beginning with Section 7900 of the Government 
Code, was  then added  to  law  to specify  the process  for calculating state and  local government appropriation 
limits and appropriations subject to  limitation under Article XII B of the Constitution. These constitutional and 
statutory sections explain and define the appropriations  limit and appropriations subject to  limitation as they 
apply  to  state  and  local  government,  and  require  that  each  entity  of  government  formally  "adopt"  its 
appropriations limit for a given fiscal year and certify actual appropriations limit for the preceding year.    
The data required to complete the calculation is provided by the State of California, Department of Finance. 
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:   
The appropriation limit is, in essence, a tax revenue limit.  If the City’s “proceeds from taxes” exceeds the 
appropriation limit, the difference must be refunded to taxpayers or receive voter approval to keep the extra 
taxes. 
Historically, the actual annual appropriations for the City of Colfax have always been well below the calculated 
limits.  Each year, the limits are adjusted by the percent change in population and the percent change in 
California per capita personal income.  Based upon these annual adjustments, it is highly unlikely that the City of 
Colfax would ever experience difficulties in staying within the limit. 
 

CONCLUSION:   
Staff recommends Adoption of Resolution. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1) Resolution 31‐2015 
2) Attachment A – Actual appropriations for the fiscal year 2014‐2015 
3) Attachment B – Appropriation Limit Calculation for the fiscal year 2015‐2016 
4) Department of Finance Price and population information for use in calculations for fiscal year 2015‐2016 appropriations 

limit.  

 

ITEM 3E
1 of 7



ITEM 3E
2 of 7



ITEM 3E
3 of 7



ITEM 3E
4 of 7



ITEM 3E
5 of 7



ITEM 3E
6 of 7



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 31-2015 
 

CERTIFYING COMPLIANCE WITH THE 2014-2015 APPROPRIATION 
LIMITATION AND ESTABLISHING THE APPROPRIATION 

LIMITATION FOR THE 2015-2016 FISCAL YEAR 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax as follows: 
 

 WHEREAS, the Colfax City Council hereby certifies that the estimated actual 
appropriations for the fiscal year 2014-2015 will fall within the appropriation 
limitation for the 2014-2015 fiscal year as demonstrated in Attachment A; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Colfax City Council must establish the appropriation 
limitation for the fiscal year 2015-2016, as calculated in Attachment B;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City 
of Colfax that the 2014-2015 fiscal year expenditures fall within the established 
limitations and the limitations for the 2015-2016 fiscal year are hereby established 
at $2,008,127. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED, this 12th day of August, 2015, by the City Council of the 
City of Colfax, by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSTAIN:   
ABSENT:   
    
 
      _______________________________________ 
      Kim Douglass, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM 3E
7 of 7



1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
   

FOR THE AUGUST 12, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM:  Mark Miller, City Manager
PREPARED BY:  Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director

DATE:  July 22, 2015 
SUBJECT:  Quarterly Investment Report – 2nd Quarter 2015 

 

X  N/A     FUNDED     UN‐FUNDED  AMOUNT:   FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and File City of Colfax Quarterly Investment Report: June 30, 2015.

 

SUMMARY: 
 

Staff recommends that the Council accepts and files the City of Colfax Quarterly Investment Report for the 
quarter ended June 30, 2015. 
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:   
 

California Government Code  Section 53646  and  the City of Colfax  Investment Policy  require a quarterly 
investment  report  be  submitted  to  the  City  Council.    Such  report  shall  include  at  least  the  following 
information: 

 Types of Investments; 

 Name of the institution in which funds are invested or deposited; 

 Date of Maturity, if applicable; 

 Par and dollar amount investment for all securities; 

 Percent distribution of each type of  investment or deposit; current market value as of the date of 
the report, including source of the valuation except those under LAIF; 

 Rate of interest; 

 Average weighted yield of all investments; 

 A statement relating the report to the City’s Investment Policy; and 

 A statement that there are sufficient funds to meet the City’s next six months’ financial obligations. 
 

The  current  practice  for  cash management  is  to maintain  an  operating  balance  between  $75,000  and 
$150,000  in  the City’s US Bank Corporate  checking account.   This account accumulates Earnings Credits 
based  on  the  account  balance  which  offset/reduce monthly  service  charges.    City  funds  in  excess  of 
targeted operating balance are transferred to the State of California Local Agency  Investment Fund (LAIF) 
on a weekly basis.   The checking account balance may be  reported at an amount higher  than  the  target 
balance by the Bank due to the timing of City checks being processed by vendors/service providers. 
 
 
 

ITEM 3F
1 of 6



2 

 

 
 
 

We have begun preliminary analysis of  investment opportunities outside the corporate checking and LAIF 
accounts.   Our  investment policy dictates  that City  should have  liquid  short  term  securities  to meet  six 
month’s  financial  obligations.  Preliminary  rate  analysis  for  Certificate  of  Deposits  (CD)  with  US  Bank 
requires a minimum balance of $1,000,000 (uncollateralized) are reflected below:  
 

 
 

Due to fluctuations in fund balances and the time requirement for interest earnings that exceed our current 
investment earnings  rate,  staff does not  recommend CD  Investments at  this  time. Staff will  continue  to 
monitor balances and investment opportunities. 
 

CONCLUSION:   
 

The attached schedule Analysis of Treasury  Investment Pool satisfies  the State’s  reporting  requirements.  
Additionally, we have determined: 

 The investments held at June 30, 2015 conform to the City Investment Policy adopted by Resolution 
29‐2014, 

 The composite yield of the City’s investment pool to be the rate of .28%, 

 There are sufficient funds on deposit to meet all anticipated City expenditures for the period July 01, 
2015 through December 31, 2015. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Analysis of Treasury Investment Pool 
2. State of California – PMIA and LAIF Performance Report (QE 06/30/15) 
3. State of California – PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields 

ITEM 3F
2 of 6



ITEM 3F
3 of 6



ITEM 3F
4 of 6



ITEM 3F
5 of 6



ITEM 3F
6 of 6



 
 
 
 
 
 
   

FOR THE August 12, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM:  Mark Miller, City Manager
PREPARED BY:  Staff 

DATE:  August 4th, 2015 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Lift Station #2 Phase 2 Pump Upgrade  

 

  N/A   X  FUNDED     UN‐FUNDED  AMOUNT: $19,419.98  FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Authorize the City Manage to purchase two new lift station pumps in the amount 
of $14,419.98 and have them installed for an amount not expected to exceed $5,000. 

 
SUMMARY: 
 
On April 8th, 2015, City Council adopted Resolution 11‐2015, authorizing the purchase of two new lift station 
pumps for lift station #2.  Acquiring and installing these two pumps was termed “Phase 1” of a two‐phase 
project.  At the time, the lift station had two functioning pumps and two non‐functioning pumps.  Shortly 
thereafter, the functioning pumps failed, necessitating the need for Phase 2 to begin sooner than expected.  
 
Phase 2 is predominantly the same as Phase 1, excepting that the installation cost will be less due to two 
reasons: 1) demolition of the existing failed pumps and associated equipment was completed during the first 
installation; and, 2) the custom‐made installation trolley system has already been fabricated and installed.   
 
Phase 1 was completed on July 7th.  The City experienced an installation cost overrun during Phase 1 due to one 
of the pumps being built incorrectly.  Staff worked with the pump supplier to reduce the cost of the Phase 2 
pumps to compensate for the cost overrun incurred during Phase 1.   
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the City Manager to purchase two new lift station pumps in the 
amount of $14,419.98, and have them completely installed for an amount not expected to exceed $5,000. 
 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

a. Resolution 32‐2015 
b. Quote from Flo‐Line Technology, Inc. 

 

ITEM 3G
1 of 3



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 32-2015 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO PURCHASE TWO NEW LIFT STATION 
PUMPS IN THE AMOUNT OF $14,419.98 AND HAVE THEM INSTALLED FOR 

AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $5,000 

 
Whereas, City of Colfax owns and maintains a sewer lift station known as Lift 

Station #2 which was built in 1988; and, 
 

Whereas, On April 8th, 2015, City Council adopted Resolution 11-2015, authorizing 
the purchase of two new lift station pumps for lift station #2 as “Phase 1” of a two-phase 
project to replace the four pumps at that lift station; and 

 
Whereas, the two remaining pumps have since failed; and, 

 
Whereas, the City has determined that it is in the best financial and operational 

interest of the City to proceed with “Phase 2” of the project and replace the two remaining 
pumps;  

 
Now Therefore, Be It Resolved by the City Council of the City of Colfax that the City 

Manager is hereby authorized to purchase two new lift station pumps in the amount of 
$14,419.98 and have them installed for an amount not to exceed $5,000. 
 

Passed and Adopted this 12th day of August by the following vote: 
 
Ayes:    
Noes:     
Absent:    
Abstain:     

  
                                                                

___________________________________ 
      Kim A. Douglass, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM 3G
2 of 3



ATTENTION

COMPANY

EMAIL

PHONE
FAX

CELL
QUOTE NO

DATE

LEAD TIME
FREIGHT
SHIP VIA
TERMS

VALIDITY

Qty Part No Unit Price Ext'd 

2 XFP101G PE185/2 $6,460.38 $12,920.77

2 41826130 $448.80 $897.60

2 62306228 $22.85 $45.69

1 40536011 $498.55 $498.55

1 62306272 $57.37 $57.37

1 RESTOCKING FEE $4,900.00 $4,900.00

1 SALES TAX $1,081.50 $1,081.50

Total $20,401

CITY OF COLFAX

PROCESS)

SUCTION ELBOW, 4" X 4" WITH CLEANOUT

DRY PIT VERTICAL MOUNT STAND

(FORMAL PURCHASE ORDER REQUIRED TO BEGIN ORDER

JACKET FOR DRY PIT INSTALL.

460/3/60, PREMIUM EFFICIENT EXPLOSION PROOF MOTOR.

ABS MODEL XFP101G CB1 PE185/2 DRY PIT SUBMERSIBLE

HARDWARE KIT (PUMP TO SUCTION ELBOW)

08-04-15

EACH PUMP IS PROVIDED WITH A GLYCOL COOLING 

HARDWARE KIT (PUMP TO STAND)

Description

NON-CLOG PUMP, 4" DISCHARGE, 25 HP, 3450 RPM, 

Gary Norgaard

                            
                                    
                                                

530-346-2313

TRAVIS BERRY

11143

travis.berry@colfax-ca.gov

THANK YOU VERY MUCH FOR THE OPPORTUNITY TO QUOTE THE ABOVE PRODUCTS

11 - 13 WEEKS ARO

530-887-2240 PP&ADD

BEST WAY

NET 30 O.A.C.

30 DAYS

PREPARED BY

RESTOCKING FEE - BASED UPON PUMPS AND EQUIPMENT

7.5% SALES TAX 

IS CANCELLED.

NOTED ABOVE TO BE PLACED ON ORDER. FEE ONLY

DUE AND PAYABLE IF PUMP AND EQUIPMENT ORDER

CELL
gary@flolinepumps.com

REFERENCE

E-MAIL
SUBJECT ABS PUMP QUOTATION

Flo-Line Technology, Inc.
11822 Kemper Rd, Auburn, CA 95603
Ph 530-887-2240, Fax 530-887-2243

www.flolinepumps.com

ITEM 3G
3 of 3



Page 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 

FOR	THE	AUGUST	12,	2015	COUNCIL	MEETING	
**	CITY	COUNCIL	SITTING	AS	THE	PLANNING	COMMISSION**

 

FROM:  Mark Miller, City Manager 

PREPARED BY:  Amy Feagans, Planning Director 

DATE:  July 29, 2015 

SUBJECT:  Design Review Permit for the Canyon Creek Self Storage Facility  

 

X  N/A     FUNDED     UN‐FUNDED  AMOUNT:   N/A  FROM FUND:   N/A 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 33‐2015 Approving the Design Review Permit for the 
Canyon Creek Self Storage Facility to be located on a 3.83‐ acre parcel (APN 101‐132‐043) in the 
Highway Commercial (CH) Zone 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE:  This hearing has been noticed in accordance with the requirements of California 
Planning and Zoning Law, Title 7, Chapter 65000, Government Code, as amended. 

 

PROJECT SUMMARY: 
Project Title:      Canyon Creek Self Storage (File No. 2015‐02‐DRP) 

Design Review Permit 
Applicant:      Andy Weinberg and David Dwelle 
Owner:        David Dwelle 
Project Location:          Canyon Creek Drive and Canyon Creek Circle 
Land Use (existing):      Vacant 
Surrounding Land Uses: 
North:        Cedar Ravine Drive, open space 
South:        Canyon Creek Circle, Single Family homes, tot lot 
East:        Canyon Creek Circle, Single Family homes 
West:        Canyon Way, open space 
Assessor’s Parcel No:     101‐132‐043‐000 
Zoning District:      CH – Highway Commercial 
GP Designation:     C – Commercial 
 

PROJECT REQUEST/DESCRIPTION 
The  requested  entitlement  is  for  a Design  Review  Permit  to  allow  the  development  of  a  163‐unit  self‐ 
storage  facility and manager’s unit.   The project  includes 12  single‐story  storage unit buildings, one  two 
story  storage unit building and a  single  story manager’s  residential unit.   The  storage units  range  in  size 
from approximately 5’ x 5’  (25 sq.  ft.)  for the smallest units to as  large as 10’ x 20’  (200 sq.  ft.) with the 
majority of units in the 10’ x 15’ (150 sq. ft.) range.  Total development on the site is approximately 20,000 
square feet including the manager’s unit. 

ITEM 6A
1 of 14



Page 2 

 

PROJECT HISTORY/BACKGROUND 
This project is part of the Canyon Creek Village Master Plan. In the late 1980s through the early 1990s, the 
City  approved  a  General  Plan  Amendment,  Rezone,  Parcel Map,  and  the  Canyon  Creek  Planned  Unit 
Development Land Use Master Plan, and corresponding Development Agreement  for the several parcels, 
including  this  parcel.    The  Canyon  Creek  Village  Master  Plan  was  comprised  of  five  parcels  totaling 
approximately 33 acres.   Phase  I of  the project consisted of  the 46‐lot  single  family  subdivision  (Canyon 
Creek Village), Phase  II  included the development of 26 multi‐family duplex and four‐plex units known as 
The Cedars.   The  third phase of  the master planned property was  the development of  the 55 apartment 
units  on  9.7  acres  known  as  the  Cedar  Ridge  Apartments  approved  in  2007.    Remaining  are  the  two 
commercially (CH) zoned parcels fronting South Canyon Way including this 3.83 acre site.  
 

SURROUNDING LAND USES AND SETTING 
The subject vacant parcel is located on the corner of Canyon Creek Drive and Canyon Creek Circle, east of 
Interstate 80, at the south end of the City.   The property  is bordered by the Canyon Creek subdivision of 
single family homes to the southeast including a small tot lot immediately adjacent to the project site that 
is owned by the Canyon Creek Home Owners association and vacant parcels to the northwest.   The 3.83 
acre parcel is sloped and contains significant tree coverage. 
 

ANALYSIS 
Land Use  
The proposed self‐storage facility  is consistent with the Highway Commercial (CH) zoning and Commercial 
(C) land use designation of the General Plan.  The use, Storage Facility, Self‐Service is listed a permitted use 
in the CH zone.  Additionally, there is a footnote to the table of uses identifying additional requirements for 
this type of use in Chapter 17.176 – Self‐service Storage Facilities.  These additional requirements including 
limitations on use, hours of operation and minimum design standards to ensure design compatibility with 
the surrounding neighborhood have been  incorporated  into  the conditions of approval.    (Attachment 1  ‐ 
Resolution Conditions of Approval) 
 

The CH commercial  zoning of  this  site permits a wide  range of uses  including gasoline  sales,  indoor and 
outdoor recreation centers, eating and drinking establishments, night clubs and other general commercial 
and  retail  sales  operations.    The  development  of  a  self‐service  storage  facility will  be  one  of  the  least 
impactful  uses  to  the  neighborhood  and will  also  be  one  of  the  lowest  trip  generators  of  all  the  uses 
permitted  in the CH zone.   Trip generation manuals  identify a range of trips per day  for storage  facilities 
ranging from 6.8 trips per 100 units to two vehicle trips per day for every 1,000 square feet of storage area.  
At 163 units and 20,000 square  feet  total size,  this project can expect  to generate approximately 24  ‐40 
trips per day which  is extremely  low  for a commercially zoned site given the wide range of uses that are 
permitted. 
 

Design Review Permit 
As  stated  in  chapter  17.32.010‐C  of  the  Colfax Municipal  Code  (CMC),  a  design  review  permit  shall  be 
obtained  prior  to  the  issuance  of  building  permit  for  any  new  construction  and  chapter  17.40.070‐B‐1 
outlines the required findings for approval. 
 

The storage unit buildings will be designed to complement  in color and material, the adjacent residential 
neighborhood  by  using  similar  exterior  siding,  roofing  materials  and  paint  colors.    Additionally,  the 
office/manager’s unit and  the building  closest  to  the adjacent homes have been designed  to  look more 
residential in appearance with a gable roof instead of the flatter shed‐type roof on the other buildings. (A 
colors and materials board will be available at the meeting). 
 

ITEM 6A
2 of 14



Page 3 

 

There will be some grading required  to make  the site buildable  for  this use, but  the soil material will be 
balanced on site and a retaining wall will be constructed to create a more level building footprint.  This wall 
will vary in height from a low of two feet to as high as 10 feet in a few areas.  The wall will be constructed 
with  large  2’  x  4’  concrete  blocks  similar  to  the wall  behind  the  community  room  at  the  Cedar  Ridge 
apartment complex.  (Attachment 3 is an example of the proposed retaining wall). 
 

Although some of the existing trees on site will be removed to allow for the development, the overall site 
design and building configuration has been designed to retain other trees that will allow some screening of 
the buildings from public view.  For the trees that will be removed, as required per section 17.110.050: “the 
applicant/developer  shall  replace  and  replant  removed  trees  with  an  equal  number  of  trees.”    Staff 
recommends that the majority of this replacement planting be on the sloped area below the retaining wall 
along Cedar Ravine Circle and across the street within the open space area adjacent to the detention pond.  
Replacement trees shall be selected from the list of City approved tree species. 
 

There will be perimeter fencing six feet high surrounding the development with a gated entry.  Because of 
the topography and slope of the site, circulation will be one‐way, circling through the units  in a counter‐
clockwise  direction.    Entrance  to  the  units  is  controlled  by  electronic  gate  typical  of  these  types  of 
developments.    A  condition  of  approval  has  been  included  requiring  that  any  fencing  visible  from  the 
adjacent public right‐of‐way or from a neighboring home or yard be black aluminum “wrought  iron” type 
fencing. 
 

Because of  the City’s emphasis on protecting  the dark skies, a condition has been  included requiring  the 
applicant to use lighting that shielded and shrouded to minimize fugitive light off site. 
 

Environmental Review 
Staff  has  determined  that  as  proposed,  this  project  is  exempt  from  CEQA  per  section  15332,  In‐fill 
Development Projects. The project  is consistent with  the applicable general plan and zoning designation, 
occurs within the City limits on a site of no more than five acres, is substantially surrounded by urban uses, 
is  not  habitat  value  for  rare  or  endangered  species, will  not  result  in  any  significant  effects  relating  to 
traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality, and is adequately served by required utilities and public services. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff  recommends  that  the  Planning  Commission  adopt  Resolution  No:  33‐2015,  approving  the  Design 
Review Permit for the Canyon Creek Self Storage Facility to be located on a 3.83‐ acre parcel (APN 101‐132‐
043) in the Highway Commercial (CH) Zone with the findings and conditions of approval. 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1  Resolution No. 33‐2015 
2   Preliminary Plan Set dated May 2015 including: 

 Site Plan 

 Grading Plan 

 Managers Unit & Office 

 Sheet A‐3 Typical Elevations 

 Sheet A‐4 Typical Elevations 

 Tree Screen Exhibit 
3  Proposed Retaining Wall Style 

ITEM 6A
3 of 14



1 

 

City of Colfax 
Planning Commission 

 

Resolution № 33-2015 
 

APPROVING THE DESIGN REVIEW PERMIT FOR THE CANYON CREEK SELF 
STORAGE FACILITY TO BE LOCATED ON A 3.83- ACRE PARCEL (APN 101-

132-043) IN THE HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL (CH) ZONE  

 
WHEREAS, the applicant, Andy Weinberg, has submitted an application for a Design 

Review Permit for development of an approximately 20,000 square foot self-storage facility 
to be located on assessor’s parcel number 101-132-043 in the Highway Commercial (CH) 
zone; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of hearing has been given at the time and in the manner required 
by State Law and City Code; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the project is consistent with the General Plan Commercial designation 
and the Highway Commercial zoning of the site; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the staff report, any 
and all written comments received during the public review process and any and all oral 
and written comments submitted at the public hearing and finds: 
 
a. The Project, as approved allows beneficial use to be made of the site for development, 

preserves and accentuates the natural features of the property, such as open space, 
topography, and trees and provides for adequate drainage of the project. 

b. The project site design as approved provides adequate access, vehicle parking, vehicle 
and pedestrian circulation, loading areas and landscaping and lighting which results 
in a safe and harmonious development. 

c. The building design, including the materials, colors, height, bulk, size and relief, and 
the arrangement of the structures on the site, as approved is harmonious with other 
development and buildings in the vicinity. 

d. The design of the public services, as approved, including but not limited to trash 
enclosures and service equipment are located so as to not detract from the 
appearance of the site and are screened appropriately and effectively using 
construction material, colors and landscaping that are harmonious with the site and 
building design. 

 
WHEREAS, the project has been determined to be exempt from the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) per section 15332, In-fill Development Projects; and 
 

ITEM 6A
4 of 14



2 

 

WHEREAS, conditions of approval have been prepared for the project as outlined in 
Exhibit “A” attached to this resolution. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission approves 
Design Review Permit No. 2015-02-DRP for the development of the Canyon Creek Self 
Storage Facility with the attached conditions. 

 
Passed and Adopted this 12th day of August by the following vote: 

 
Ayes:    
Noes:    
Absent:   
Abstain:   

  
                                                                

___________________________________ 
      Kim A. Douglass, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 
 
 

ITEM 6A
5 of 14



City of Colfax 
Planning Commission 

  

Resolution № 33-2015 
EXHIBIT A – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
1. The project as approved shall be in substantial compliance with the preliminary plan set 

attached to the staff report dated August 12, 2015. 
 

2. Permanent signage shall be approved under a separate Sign Permit.  Temporary banners shall 
only be displayed subject to the provisions of the City’s Sign Ordinance regulating promotional 
events and require approval of a Sign Permit. 

 
3. No truck or vehicle rental shall be conducted from the premises. 
 

4. There shall be no outdoor storage of any kind.  
 

5. Restrooms shall be accessible and available to employees and customers per the Plumbing 
Code. 

 
6. The owner/operator of the Canyon Creek Self Storage shall maintain in good repair all fencing, 

walls, buildings, lighting, landscaping, driveway and parking area.  The premises shall be kept 
clean and in an orderly fashion.  

 
7. The applicant shall be responsible for graffiti-free maintenance of the site, and shall remove 

any graffiti within 48 hours of occurrence or City notification, whichever occurs first. 
 

8. Perimeter fencing when seen from adjacent public rights of way or neighboring residential 
property shall be black aluminum 3 panel post in the wrought-iron style and approved by the 
planning director prior to installation. 

 
9. The project operation shall implement Best Management Practices (BMPs) appropriate to the 

uses conducted on-site to effectively prevent the entry of pollutants into storm water runoff.  
 

10. The following control measures for construction and noise shall be adhered to, unless 
otherwise approved by the Planning Director or City Engineer: 

a. Applicant shall designate a "noise disturbance coordinator" who will be responsible for 
responding to any local complaints about construction noise. Please submit contact 
information to the Planning Division.  

 
b. Construction work hours shall comply with City standards of 6:00 a.m.to 6:00 p.m. 
Monday through Friday; and 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on Saturdays, Sundays and observed 
holidays. 

 
11. Flammable or combustible liquids or gasses shall not be used or stored on site.  

 

ITEM 6A
6 of 14



Planning Commission Resolution 33-2015 Exhibit A  

2 
 

12. Address and premise identification approved numbers shall be maintained on all buildings in 
such a position as to be plainly visible and legible from the road or street fronting the property.  
 

13. Security gate access shall be provided at all times for Sheriff, Fire, City inspection, utility and 
other health and safety related vehicles.  A gate opening system to provide for emergency 
vehicle access shall be installed to the satisfaction of the Sheriff and Fire Marshal.  
 

14. Tree replacement shall comply with section 17.110.050 of the Colfax Municipal Code and 
replacement trees shall be selected from the City’s approved tree species list.  
 

15. The project shall comply with Chapter 17.176, Self-Service Storage Facilities, of the Colfax 
Municipal Code including hours of operation. 
 

16. To minimize visual impacts to adjacent properties, there shall be no off-site glare through the 
use of cut-off lenses and fixtures shall be “dark sky compliant”. 
 

17. Wall-mounted lights shall be located on the building below the roofline of storage unit and 
directed downward. 

ITEM 6A
7 of 14



SCAlr, I· • 30 

PARCEL 

PfRt1ET[R fENce 

i 
:Il 
ti .. 
§ 
51 

t 
; 
~ 
c 

~ 
9 
~ 

i 
§ 

~ 
~ LEGEND 
;;; 

I ~ I I I I I 
~ 

P~OPOSED BlJlOlNt. 

PROPOSEC PAVEMENT 

i 1;1·1.-. ··-·,··-1 

! ~ 

0: 

PRoposro CONCRETE 

H~AffiC DIRECTION ARROW P LAN 
PROPOSED EXTERIOR lIGttTING (DOWNWARD f ACINC.) SCALE' r · • 30 

APPLICANT/OWNER-

DAVID W DWELLE 
301 CANYON CREEK DRIVE 

COlfAX CA. q~713 
(530) 34~-~71~ 

PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE 

MR ANDY WEINBERG 

.301 CANYON CR:HK DRivE 
COLfAX CA q5713 
(530 ) 34~-~71~ 

PRE PAR 10 D BY-

NEVADA GIfT fN(.tjEfR.~C. INC 
Wl.LlAM 0 Gli:fEN Ii!: C.E 5383q ANORfW R CASSANO L 5 4~70 

505 COYOTE 5TRfEr - POBOX )J37 
NEVADA CIlT CAUfOR:NlA QSC!5Q 
(530) 21D5-IOQl1 

NOTES-

1 PROPEIHr PROf ... !' 

A.P.N. 

PA~CEl 5<ZE 
101-1~2-4.3 

.3 6.3 A, 
SITE ADDRESS CANYON CR((r; ORNE 

GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION/ZONING 

CURRENT LAND USE 

eH C tOMHEfWAL HlC".HWA Y ) 
VACANT 

2 lOT COVERAG[ !?>UMNART 

14 PROPOSED 8lIt0lMC5 (fOOT PRINT) 

SURf ACED AR(A 

lANDSCAPE At-lO UNIMPRovED AREAS 
REMAINDER AR[A 

TOTAL 

45 At 

~O AC 
50 AC 

22a AC. 

3e3 At. 

5 TOTAL NI..f1e£R Of TREES TO 8f R(MOVED • GG 

11 81-

15.e7. 

· 1327. 

· sq 27. 

· 1007. 

" THE TOPOGRAPHT SHOWN PER TorO(,lUPHtC FIELD SURVEY 8T 

DUNDAS + Dl.INDA5 

SERVICE PROVIDERS-

flfU: .. CITY Of COLfU 

POLICE .. Pl.ACER COUNTY SHE~:lFf ~ OEPA~TMENT 

SEWER .. CITy Of CaLF AX 

WATfR .. PLAC[~ COUNTY WATfR AGENCY 

UTILITIES-

ELECT Ii:!(. SERVICE' 
PACflC GAS AND (LECTR.IC 
3~~ SACRAMENTO STREET AU8URN. CAUF. QS"03 
f'MONE' (530) eeQ-32e5 

TELEPHONE SERVICE' 
VERIZON 
430 W[ST C[NTER STREET MANTECA CAUF q533G 
PHONE' (ZOCi) 23Q-0334 

SANIT ARY SEWER SERVICE' 
cln or Coc..f"AX DEPARTMENT Of Pt.t6UC WORKS 
PO HOX 702 
33 5 HAIN ST COLfAX CAUf q5713 
f'MONE' (530) 34G-Z313 

OOM(5TIC WAT(R ~PPLY' 
PLACER COUNTy WATER AGfI''ICY 
PO 80X G570 ALJaURN . CAUf QSG04 
f'MONE' (530) e23-4eso 

DEVELOPMENT 

C E DAR 
Y/lTMjN A PORTION Of 

TO 
GRASS 
VALLEY 

TO AlJDURN (9 

PERMIT 

VICINITY MAP 
NOT TO ~C.Al( 

SHEET INDEX-

PREuMINARY ~TE PLAN 

PRELIMiNARY GRAOING PLAN 

FOR 

STORAGE 
EAST 1/2 SECTION 10. T. 14 N .. R. q E .. M.D.M. 
IN THE INCORPORATED TERRITORY OF 

COLFAX. CALIFORNIA 
SCAl.£· 1" • ~. MAY. 2015 

NEVADA CITY ENGINEERING,INC. 
!l0' COYOTE STRE[T • PO 801. 10437 • NEVADA CITy • CALIfORNIA 

9 
~ 

"HEET 1 OF 2 1: 
c-··. 

ITEM 6A
8 of 14



t 
~ 
:s 
<$ 

SCALE' I" • :)0 
CONTOUR. JNTt:RVAL ., 2 

LEGEND 

EXISTING ~OP INLET 

rxl~ TING C M.P 

Z, =--~ EXISTING ORAIf'oIAGE: DITCH t r,;; E'(ISTINC fIRE: HyDRANT 

! I I I I I I PROPOSED !lUl.[)ING 
~. 
~ PRoPOSED PAvfHfNT 

~ '-I ~i. " ; .... PROPOSED CONCRETE: 

~ PROPOSED RETAINING WALL 

i = PROPOSED OtTCH 

DRAIN E:ASEMENT 

ZZ4Q 

22)0 

2220 

2210 

2200 -

5 IT E 5ECTION "A" 
SCALE') ., 30 HORtZ ... VERT 

DEVELOPMENT PERM I T fOR 

2240 

22)0 

2220 

2210 

2200 

CEO A R STORAGE 
WITHIN A PORTION Of 

EAST 1/2 SECTION 10. T. 14 N .. R. q E .. M.D.M. 
IN THE INCORPQRA TEO TERRITORY OF" 

COLFAX. CALIFORNIA i -SD- ""OPoSED D.AJN SGAU:O I" • 30' MAT, 2015 

.t 'I~O P'OPoSED r .. SH GRADE SPOT ELEVATION PRE LIM I N A R '( G R A 0 I N G P LAN N E V A 0 A CIT YEN GIN E E R I N G, INC. !L ________________________________________________________________________________________ ~S:C:AL:E'~I~"~.~):o~' _________________________________________________________________________ ~~s_C_0_TO_T~E~S_TR_E_ET_. __ p_0_e_0_x_1._)_7_._N_EV_A_OA __ CI_TT __ ._CA_L_"~ __ ~_A ___________ 5H_E_E_T __ 2 __ 0c.F~2= 
c-··· 

ITEM 6A
9 of 14



I 

I 
I 
i 

"1 __ '._1 ...... ' ........ , 11.1___ ..... ' .. ..,III.t ... __ ~ -..., .. -...,.a:no ___ •. _ .... __ . __ .. , .. _ 1111 __ .... _ ••• _ .. _ ,_,."" ____ ... _ ... --._, .. " _____ 1_--.'1'"" _______ I ....... I'K&I' ___ ' I ... ~I .... _._.._' .. l •• ' ... ' ''',.._,_ 

PROPOSED SOUTHEAST EXTERIOR ELEVATION 
scalo. 1I4·= 1'~' --------1 ~. 

i 

DD 
-Jq 

!! 

PROPOSED NORTHWEST EXTERIOR ELEVATION 
scalo: 1/4'= 1'~' 

,N' 12'·1C1" .... 

.. 
tl l 
, 
~ I~ 

o 

NT I .... .... 12'-11r __ -=-s ... __ _ 
~-~ -

~-- -_ ...... _--...... 

PROPOSED MAIN LEVEL FLOOR PLAN __ _ 
scala 114'= 1'~'" 1.22651 NEW CONDITIONED AREA RESIDENCE and 34451 NEW CONOlTlONED AREA OFFICE 

-----

~ f-: 
-

b~~ 
-- -

~ l -
~~ - -

c---r B ~ m [OJ ~ CD 11 
~ 

- ~ 

/ . 
,l--- .,.--

" 
PROPOSED NORTHEAST EXTERIOR ELEVATION --- --

5calo'1I4'= 1'~' 

l 
I l 

b= - ] 

- - -
I- - 11·1: rn " 

-' 11 I[ I 'I OJ 11 
~ ~ 

PROPOSED SOUTHWEST EXTERIOR ELEVATIO::....;N-'--____ _ 
scala 114' = 1'.j)' 

--l 
!.l.I 

Z 

< 
-l 
!.l.I 

P.O. BOX 1502 
GRASS V.IIl.EY. CA 

95945 
(530) 272-4781 
www.emlieske.com 

"PRELIMINARY· 
NOT FOR 

CONSTRUCTION 

A2 

ITEM 6A
10 of 14



I __ '._'I.-._'~._"U ____ I'I' 
.' __ ~_' ... __ r ... _ ,_"",,,",~_,.,_ "_'_'.~ ___ '-.'_II.U"",_Iw.' ~ __ ~""_~''''''' _____ .-'O ....... ,M.UI 

-

= 
_. -

= 
-_. -

=h - - . 

~ 
STORAGE BLDG SOUTHEAST ELEVATION 

st:a!e:114·= 1'.{)" 

=11. 
-- - - ._- -

~ 
I 

: I 
=Il 

~ 

=n L .'-

I ~ ~ ~ I 
PROPOSED STORAGE BUILDING 

STORAGE BLDG SOUTHEAST ELEVATION with TREES 
scM; 114·= 1'4" 

--

, 

; 
-- --

~ I 

l 

rf== 
l 

ff== 
._-

I 

JI== 
- -

l 

rf== _. -
l 

r f== 

1 

r== 

..... :114··1'4" 

tpRElIMINARr 
NOT FOR 

CONSTRUCTION 

A3 
f _ ."CHIfEcruR"l 5HI5 

ITEM 6A
11 of 14



I I I I 
I I i i I 

I I I : 

I I I I 

PROPOSED TYPICAL STORAGE BUILDING 

314_'-' 

, : 

-

TYPICAL STORAGE BUILDING SIDE ELEVATION 
scaJo: 114" = 1'.q 

TYPICAL STORAGE BUILDING FRONT ELEVATION 

I I 
: 

I 

scale: 114" = NY 

- "- 3/4 

-

TYPICAL STORAGE BUILDING SIDE ELEVATION 
scale: 1/4" = 1'.q 

scale: 1/4" = 1'.q 

-,..J 

P.O. BOX 1502 
GRASS VAllEY, CA 

95945 
(530) 272-4781 
www.emr ... ke.com 

*PREUMINARY* 
NOT FOR 

CONSTRUCTION 

A4 

ITEM 6A
12 of 14



V' V.\rlV .... UL.IJV VVV ....... rlV ..... 1... .... Vrl. 'V'V 

S TOR AGE B LOG SOU THE A S TEL E V A T ION with T R E E S 
scale: 114-= 1'-1f 

ITEM 6A
13 of 14



ITEM 6A
14 of 14



 
 
 
 
 
 
   

For the August 12, 2015 Council Meeting 
 

FROM:  Mark Miller, City Manager 

PREPARED By:  Staff 

SUBJECT:  Response to Grand Jury Report 

 

X  N/A   X  FUNDED     UN‐FUNDED  AMOUNT:    FROM FUND:   

 

RECOMMENDED  ACTION:  Receive and file. 

 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
The 2014‐2015 Placer County Grand  Jury reviewed  the operational policies of several  jurisdictions within 
Placer County with the intent to determine if the policies for travel, use of government and private vehicles 
for  official  business,  use  of  government  credit  cards,  computers,  and  phones,  contracting  bidding  an 
purchasing were appropriate, up‐to‐date and complete.  Although Colfax in general has satisfactory policies 
in place, not all were  in writing.   The Grand  Jury  issued eight  recommendations  for  the City of Colfax  to 
address:   

 A written policy for travel and vehicle use. 

 A regular schedule for reviewing all policies to assure they are current. 

 All policies should include, approval, adoption, and review dates. Policies should be indexed for 
improved access. 

 A written cell phone policy. 

 Computer and internet policies. 

 Technology policies including computer, tablet, internet and email use. 
 Consider procuring cyber security insurance. 

 Require  that  employees  verify  on  a  recurring  schedule  that  they  understand  and  acknowledge,  by 
signature, operational policies and any changes. 

Staff is addressing each of these issues by developing policies which will be brought to Council for approval 
in September.  Regular Policy review will be facilitated on a three year cycle.  Cyber insurance is already in 
place through SCORE.   The Cell phone polices and other employee policies already  in place are scheduled 
for updates. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Placer County Grand Jury Report: Investigation of County and City Operational Policies 
Colfax Response Form to be submitted to the Grand Jury 
Colfax Policy Index 

ITEM 7B
1 of 16



Placer County Grand Jury 

2014-2015 Final Report 

PLACER COUNTY GRAND JURY 

Investigation of County and City 

Operational Policies 
June 26, 2015 

- 1 -

ITEM 7B
2 of 16



Placer County Grand Jury 

2014·2015 Final Report 

Investigation of County and City Operational Policies 

Summary 

The 2014-2015 Grand Jury (Grand Jury) reviewed the operational policies of the incorporated 
city governments and Placer County. These included Auburn, Colfax, Lincoln, Loomis, Rocklin, 
and Roseville. The Grand Jury met with county and local government financial managers to 
understand their various individual local policies, their implementation, and their review 
procedures and control elements. Our intent was to detennine if the policies for travel, use of 
government and private vehicles for official business, use of government credit cards, computers, 
and phones, contracting, bidding and purchasing were appropriate, up-to-date and complete. 

The Grand Jury sought to detennine how such policies are updated to address changes over time 
and as technology evolves. The Grand Jury also wanted to verify that the policies for travel and 
the use of technology applied to elected officials as well as government employees. The Grand 
Jury noted minor improvements were needed in documenting policies, their timeliness and 
maintaining an inventory of policies. Keeping policies in line with technology changes 
represents a continuing challenge. 

Included in this report are several recommendations that the Grand Jury considers to be 
representative of best practices including: 

• Schedule regular specific reviews of policies to assure they are current. 

• Have employees verify they understand rules and policies on a recurring basis. 

• Include a policy and form for whistleblower use. 

• Consider cyber-security insurance. 

• Clarify policies to include all aspects oftechnology. 

Glossary 
Operating Policies Principles, rules, and guidelines fonnulated or adopted by an organization to 

communicate how the organization conducts its operations. 

Best practices Best practice is a fonn of program evaluation in public policy. It is the 
process of reviewing policy alternatives that have been effective in 
addressing similar issues in the past and could be applied to a current 
problem. 

·2 · 

ITEM 7B
3 of 16



Background 

Placer County Grand Jury 

2014-2015 Final Report 

Responsibilities of local government employees and elected officials cover a broad range of 
challenges. Administration of travel costs and the use of credit cards requires strict management 
controls. In order to satisfy a wide variety of needs, a transparent system of contract 
requirements, bidding, and awarding to various vendors is necessary. It is a continuing challenge 
to operate efficiently using an ever-expanding variety of technology tools (smart phones vs. 
mobile phones, laptops vs. tablets). Policies are necessary to set the rules for such activities and 
to assure inter-disciplinary coordination on the acquisition, use and management of new 
technology. 

Investigation Methods 

The Grand Jury attempted to review operational policies on-line using public web sites. When 
the Grand Jury was unable to locate the policies on-line, it was determined that further 
investigation of these policies was appropriate. 

Under the Public Records Act, the Grand Jury requested the operational policies addressing: 

• Travel 
• Use of government and private vehicles for official business 

• Use of government credit cards, computers, and phones 

• Contracting, bidding and purchasing 

The Grand Jury reviewed the operational policies of the six incorporated city governments and 
Placer County to determine if the policies are appropriate, current and realistic. The Grand Jury 
met with and interviewed the county auditor-controller and local government financial managers 
to understand their various individual local policies, the implementation of those policies, and 
how they are managed. The Grand Jury sought to determine how such policies addressed, 
coordinated and managed new technologies. The Grand Jury wanted to verify that policies for 
travel and the use of technology applied to elected officials as well as government employees. 
The Grand Jury also inquired into the initial and recurring training on operational policies. 

- 3 -

ITEM 7B
4 of 16



Facts and Findings 

Placer County Grand Jury 

2014-2015 Final Report 

For Placer County and the cities of Auburn, Colfax, Lincoln, Loomis, Rocklin and Roseville, the 

Grand Jury determined the following: 

Travel Policies 

Facts 

• All have budgets, controls and policies for travel of elected officials and employees. 

• Travel plans and projected costs are developed in the fiscal budget process. 

• Any out of state, out of the country, and unbudgeted travel requires pre-approval by the 
respective elected officials (Board of Supervisors for county, council members for cities). 

• All policies for travel require the use of the lowest cost for airfare, ground transportation 
and lodging. 

• Per Diem rates for employees on official travel use IRS or lesser rates. 

• All governmental entities have personnel approving travel in advance and staff 
monitoring travel claims and payments. 

• Elected officials and appointed employees are subject to the same operational policies in 
all entities. 

• Colfax does not have a written policy on travel. 

Findings 

F 1. Policies for travel seemed appropriate and adequate while recognizing the wide 
differences in size ofthe workforce and responsibilities. Colfax has policies, but they 
are not in writing. 

F2. Travel controls for all entities are adequate. 

Vehicle Policies 

Facts 

• County and all local governments have government vehicles. The majority ofvehic1e use 
is by public safety and public service departments . 

• The use of personal vehicles for official travel is reimbursed at the IRS approved mileage 
rate. 

• The Board of Supervisors and other elected local government officials are not assigned 
government owned vehicles. 

• Elected officials receive set allowances to compensate for transportation expenses. 
• Colfax does not have a written policy on vehicle use. 

- 4 -

ITEM 7B
5 of 16



Findings 

Placer County Grand Jury 

2014-2015 Final Report 

F3 . Vehicle policies for all jurisdictions are satisfactory, although Cofax's policy is not in 
writing. 

Credit Card Policies 

Facts 

• The county and all cities use credit cards. The number of cards in use varies; for example, 
Loomis has only one credit card, while Roseville has over 300 credit cards. 

• Managers or department heads are responsible for approving the issuance of cards and 
monitoring appropriate use. 

• Typical credit card use includes: 
• 
• 
• 

Travel expenses such as airfare and conference fees payable in advance 
Purchases for emergency repairs 

Numerous other authorized routine field expenses 

• Credit card expenses are reviewed and approved prior to payment. 

• Monitoring of credit card expenses is routinely done by staff and, proactively by the 
issuing credit card banks. 

Findings 

F4. Each government body has different policies and procedures for issuance and use of 
credit cards. 

F5. Credit cards are widely used by Placer County, Rocklin and Roseville. Use in other 
jurisdictions is more limited. 

F6. Monitoring and control of credit card use is adequate. 

Cell-Phone Polices 

Facts 

• All entities issue and use cell-phones for employee use. 

• The bulk of cell-phone use is by public safety and public service employees. 

• Elected officials generally use their own cell-phones and are reimbursed or have 
allowances covering such use. 

• Placer County and Roseville department heads authorize cell-phone issuances. 

- 5 -

ITEM 7B
6 of 16



Placer County Grand Jury 

2014-2015 Final Report 

• Placer County and Roseville IT departments have responsibility for negotiating cell
phone contracts. 

Findings 

F7. Monitoring cell phone usage continues to be an on-going challenge for management. 

Technology Policies 

Facts 

• All entities have a wide variety of hardware and software. 

• Placer County, Auburn, Rocklin,and Roseville have inter-disciplinary groups to assess 
technology changes, their application and their costs. 

• Some agencies monitor Internet access to preclude personal use. 

• Rocklin has a social media policy. 

• Roseville has e-mail and remote e-mail policies that employees must read, acknowledge 
and understand before signing. 

• Roseville incorporates technology training in yearly ethics training. 

• Cyber security insurance is purchased by Roseville. 

• Auburn has a technical procedures policy that employees must sign. 

• deleted 

Findings 

F8. Smart phones have blurred the lines between cell-phone and technology use policies. 

F9. Management oversight and monitoring of technology usage is an evolving challenge. 

FlO. The extent of personal computer and tablet usage varies with the number of employees. 

FlI. Management approach and policies on technology vary. 

Contracting, Bidding and Purchasing Policies 

Facts 

• Contracting and bidding practices vary but conform to state laws, regulations and 
appeared adequate. 

- 6 -

ITEM 7B
7 of 16



Findings 

FI2. All entities have adequate policies on contracting and bidding. 

Management and Administration of Policies 

Facts 

• Training policies and practices, both initial and recurring, vary. 

Placer County Grand Jury 

2014-2015 Final Report 

• All operational policies apply to elected officials as well as employees. 

• Not all policies were current and in writing. 

• Not all policies were organized and indexed. 

• Only Placer County has internal auditors on staff. 

• Roseville does not have an internal auditor but is considering adding this role. 

• Colfax has a policy and a complaint form for whistleblower reports. All others rely on 
Federal Law protecting whistle blowers but do not have a policy or form for written 
whistle blower reports. 

Findings 

F13. Policies are not being updated in a timely fashion. 
FI4. Some, but not all, policies identified the original date of issue or date ofreview. 
FI5 . Issuance dates, recurring reviews and approvals of operational policies were only 

completed by Placer County, Colfax and Roseville. Other entities revised policies on 
an "as necessary" basis. 

FI6. Complete standardized numbered policies were only available from Placer County and 
Roseville. 

FI7. Initial training on operational policies is completed for newly elected officials and new 
employees in a variety of ways. 

FI8. Recurring training policies can be improved. 
F19. Management of technology innovations requires an inter-disciplinary approach. 
F20. On-going internal auditing serves to monitor internal controls and minimize non-

compliance and abuse. The addition of internal auditors would be valuable for the 
larger cities. 

F2I. Providing forms for employees to submit whistleblower reports in writing would be of 
value. 

- 7 -

ITEM 7B
8 of 16



Placer County Grand Jury 

2014-2015 Final Report 

Conclusions 

The Grand Jury's review of the operating policies ofthe county and cities indicates they are 
appropriate. There are actions that the Grand Jury would consider best practices that should be 
instilled. Current policies apply equally to elected officials, appointed management and 
employees. 

Significant variability exists in the level of detail included in the operating policies of the county 
and various cities. As the size of the government entity and number of employees increases, 
more reliance is placed on managerial control. 

Recommendations 
(Table 1 on the following page specifies which recommendations are applicable to each entity) 

The Grand Jury recommends that: 

Rl. 

R2. 

R3. 

R4. 

R5. 

R6. 

NO R7. 

R8. 

R9. 

NO RIO. 

NO RIl. 

A written policy for travel and vehicle use be developed. 

A regular schedule be established for reviewing all policies to assure they are current. 

All policies should include, approval, adoption, and review dates. Policies should be 
indexed for improved access. 

Cell phone policies be documented. 

Computer and internet policies be documented. 

Technology policies include computer, tablet, internet and email use. 

Consideration should be given to the development of a Technology Resources Policy 
including a schedule of reviews and employee acknowledgements. 

Consideration be given to procuring cyber security insurance. 

Require that employees on a recurring schedule verify that they understand and 
acknowledge, by signature, operational policies and any changes thereto. 

A whistleblower policy and reporting form be developed. 

Consideration be given to adding one or more internal auditors to staff. 

- 8 -

ITEM 7B
9 of 16



Table 1 - Recommendations 

RI R2 R3 R4 

Placer County 

City of Auburn X X 

City of Colfax X X X X 

City of Lincoln X X X 

Town of Loomis X X X 

City of Rocklin X X 

City of Roseville 

Key: X - indicates this recommendation applies. 

Recommendations 

RS R6 R7 R8 

X 

X X X 

X X X 

X X X 

X X X 

X 

- 9 -

R9 RIO 

X 

X X 

X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X 

Rll 

X 
I 

Placer County Grand Jury 

2014-2015 Final Report 

ITEM 7B
10 of 16



Request for Responses: 

Mr. David Boesch 
Placer County CEO 
175 Fulweiler Ave. 
Auburn, CA 95603 

Mr. Andrew Sisk 
Placer County Auditor Controller 
175 Fulweiler Ave. 
Auburn, CA 95603 

Mr. Tim Rundel 
City Manager, City of Auburn 
1225 Lincoln Way 
Auburn, CA 95603 

Mr. Mark Miller 
City Manager, City of Colfax 
33 South Main St. 
Colfax, CA 95713 

Mr. Matt Brower 
City Manager, City of Lincoln 
600 Sixth St. 
Lincoln, CA 95648 

Mr. Rick Angelocci 
Town Manager, Town of Loomis 
3665 Taylor Road 
Loomis, CA 95650 

Mr. Ricky A. Horst 
City Manager, City of Rocklin 
3970 Rocklin Rd. 
Rocklin, CA 95677 

Recommendations 

Placer County Grand Jury 

2014-2015 Final Report 

Requiring Response Response Due Date 

RS, RIO August 24, 2015 

RIO August 24, 2015 

R2, R3, R6-RIO August 24, 2015 

Rl-R6, ROS-09 August 24, 2015 

R2-R4, R6-RIO August 24, 2015 

R2-R6, RS-RIO August 24, 2015 

R2, R3, RS-RI0 August 24, 2015 

- 10 -

ITEM 7B
11 of 16



Mr. Ray Kerridge 
City Manager, City of Roseville 
311 Vernon St. 
Roseville, CA 95678 

Copies Sent to: 

Mr. Keith Nesbitt, 
Mayor, City of Auburn 
1225 Lincoln Way 
Auburn, CA 95603 

Mr. Kim Douglass 
Mayor, City of Colfax 
33 South Main St. 
Colfax, CA 95713 

Mr. Paul Joiner 
Mayor, City of Lincoln 
600 Sixth St. 
Lincoln, CA 95648 

Ms. Rhonda Morillas 
Mayor, Town of Loomis 
3665 Taylor Road 
Loomis, CA 95650 

Mr. George Magnuson 
Mayor, City of Rocklin 
3970 Rocklin Rd. 
Rocklin, CA 95677 

Ms. Carol Garcia 
Mayor, City of Roseville 
311 Vernon St. 
Roseville, CA 95678 

RIO, Rll 

Mr. Dylan Fisk 

Placer County Grand Jury 

2014-2015 Final Report 

August 24, 2015 

Administrative Services Director, City of Auburn 
1225 Lincoln Way 
Auburn, CA 95603 

Ms. Laurie Van Groningen 
Finance Director, City of Colfax 
33 South Main St. 
Colfax, CA 95713 

Mr. Steven Ambrose 
Finance Director 
600 Sixth St. 
Lincoln, CA 95648 

Mr. Roger Carroll 
Treasurer, Finance Director, Town of Loomis 
3665 Taylor Road 
Loomis, CA 95650 

Ms. Kimberly Sarkovich 
Chief Financial Officer, City of Rocklin 
3970 Rocklin Rd. 
Rocklin, CA 95677 

Mr. Monty Hanks 
Finance Director, City of Roseville 
311 Vernon St. 
Roseville, CA 95678 

- II -

ITEM 7B
12 of 16



F026–Instructions for Respondents  R2 
 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR RESPONDENTS 
 
The legal requirements affecting respondents and responses to Grand Jury findings and 
recommendations are contained in California Penal Code, Section 933.05.  The full text 
of the law is provided below. 
 
Two different time periods for responses, and to whom you must respond is defined in 
Penal Code Section 933(c).  They are as follows: 
 

Type of Agency Time Frame To Whom 
Public Ninety (90) Days  Presiding Judge of the Superior Court 

Elective Office or 
Agency Head 

Sixty (60) Days  Presiding Judge of the Superior Court 
 Information copy to Board of 

Supervisors 
 
Two originals of the responses must be provided to: 

1. Presiding Judge of the Placer County Superior Court at the address listed 
below: 

The Honorable Colleen Nichols 
Presiding Judge of the Superior Court 
County of Placer 
P.O. Box 619072 
Roseville, CA 95661 
 

2. Placer County Grand Jury at the address listed below: 
 
Placer County Grand Jury 
11532 B Avenue 
Auburn, CA 95603 

 
When responding to more than one report, respondents must respond to each 
report separately. 
 
You are encouraged to use the Response to Grand Jury Report Form, attached, to 
help format and organize your response.  An electronic version of the form is 
available upon request from the Grand Jury.  

PLACER COUNTY GRAND JURY
Phone: (530) 886-5200 FAX (530) 886-5201
Mailing Address: 11532 B Avenue, Auburn, CA 95603
 

ITEM 7B
13 of 16



Response to Grand Jury Report Form 
 
 
Report Title: Investigation of County and City Operational Policies 
     
Report Date: June 26, 2015    
     
Response By: Mark Miller  Title: City Manager,  

City of Colfax 
 
 
FINDINGS 
 
 I (we) agree with the findings, numbered: __ ____________. 1-6, 8,9_

 I (we) disagree wholly or partially with the findings, numbered: ___________. 

(Describe here or attach a statement specifying any portions of the findings 
that are disputed or not applicable; include an explanation of the reasons 
therefore.) 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
 Recommendations numbered _____ ______ have been implemented. R2, R3, R8

Review schedule and matrix attached.  Insurance is in place 

 Recommendations numbered __ _ have not yet been implemented, R1, R4, R5,R6, R9
but will be implemented in the future. 

The City Council of the City of Colfax will review new policies in September 2015. 

 Recommendations numbered _____________ require further analysis. 

(Describe here or attach an explanation and the scope and parameters of an 
analysis or study, and a timeframe for the matter to be prepared for discussion by 
the officer or director of the agency or department being investigated or reviewed, 
including the governing body of the public agency when applicable.  This 
timeframe shall not exceed six (6) months from the date of publication of the grand 
jury report.) 

 Recommendations numbered _____________ will not be implemented because they 
are not warranted or are not reasonable. 

(Describe here or attach an explanation.) 

 

Date:   Signed:  
 

Number of pages attached __1___. 

ITEM 7B
14 of 16



California Penal Code 

Section 933.05 

 
(a) For purposes of subdivision (b) of Section 933, as to each grand jury finding, the 
responding person or entity shall indicate one of the following: 
   (1) The respondent agrees with the finding. 
   (2) The respondent disagrees wholly or partially with the finding, in which case the 
response shall specify the portion of the finding that is disputed and shall include an 
explanation of the reasons therefore. 
(b) For purposes of subdivision (b) of Section 933, as to each grand jury 
recommendation, the responding person or entity shall report one of the following actions: 
   (1) The recommendation has been implemented, with a summary regarding the 
implemented action. 
   (2) The recommendation has not yet been implemented, but will be implemented in the 
future, with a timeframe for implementation. 
   (3) The recommendation requires further analysis, with an explanation and the scope 
and parameters of an analysis or study, and a timeframe for the matter to be prepared for 
discussion by the officer or head of the agency or department being investigated or 
reviewed, including the governing body of the public agency when applicable. This 
timeframe shall not exceed six months from the date of publication of the grand jury 
report. 
   (4) The recommendation will not be implemented because it is not warranted or is not 
reasonable, with an explanation therefore. 
(c) However, if a finding or recommendation of the grand jury addresses budgetary or 
personnel matters of a county agency or department headed by an elected officer, both 
the agency or department head and the board of supervisors shall respond if requested 
by the grand jury, but the response of the board of supervisors shall address only those 
budgetary or personnel matters over which it has some decision-making authority. The 
response of the elected agency or department head shall address all aspects of the 
findings or recommendations affecting his or her agency or department. 
(d) A grand jury may request a subject person or entity to come before the grand jury for 
the purpose of reading and discussing the findings of the grand jury report that relates to 
that person or entity in order to verify the accuracy of the findings prior to their release. 
(e) During an investigation, the grand jury shall meet with the subject of that investigation 
regarding the investigation, unless the court, either on its own determination or upon 
request of the foreperson of the grand jury, determines that such a meeting would be 
detrimental. 
(f) A grand jury shall provide to the affected agency a copy of the portion of the grand jury 
report relating to that person or entity two working days prior to its public release and after 
the approval of the presiding judge. No officer, agency, department, or governing body of 
a public agency shall disclose any contents of the report prior to the public release of the 
final report. 

ITEM 7B
15 of 16



Policy # Policy Adoption Date Review Date*

09-01 City Credit Card for Business Use 2/2/2009 3/1/2016

14-01 Financial Policies 10/8/2014 3/1/2016

14-02 Whistleblower Policy 10/8/2014 3/1/2016

14-03 Investment Policy 10/8/2014 3/1/2016

09-02 Smoking on City Property/Vehicle 9/2/2009 3/1/2016

99-01 Drug Testing Policy 6/8/1999 3/1/2016

15-01 Travel Policy (pending approval) 3/1/2018

15-02 Use of City Vehicles (pending) 3/1/2018

15-03 Cell Phone Use (Updating) 3/1/2018

15-04 Technology (pending approval) 3/1/2018

*Reviews for most policies will coincide with the mid-year budget review.

City of Colfax 

Administrative Policies and Procedures

Updated 8-12-15

ITEM 7B
16 of 16



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 

For the August 12, 2015 Council Meeting 
 

FROM:  Mark Miller, City Manager 

PREPARED BY:  Staff 

SUBJECT:  Recruitment Status, Job Descriptions and Salary Schedules for Chief Plant Operator, 
Technical Services Administrator, Community Services Director and Administrative 
Assistant 

 

 N/A   X  FUNDED    UN‐FUNDED  AMOUNT:  Varies 
FROM FUNDS:  Multiple ‐Wastewater, 
Engineering, Project  and General Funds 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive staff presentation, discuss and approve Resolution 34‐2015 as 
appropriate. 

 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
Recent staffing vacancies and the improving economic activity in Colfax have provided an opportunity to re‐
evaluate  operational  demands  and  update  the  job  descriptions  for  a  number  of  critical  staff  positions.  
Currently, the City operations  include contract services at the wastewater treatment plant, the Technical 
Service Administrator and the Community Services Director positions working above  job classification, an 
unfilled vacancy in public works maintenance, and temporary help supporting administration and summer 
maintenance functions.   
 

WASTEWATER POSITIONS ‐ The City Council has had several discussions on the wastewater treatment plant 
operations with the consensus direction given that in‐house staffing would best serve the needs of Colfax, 
and  that  the  salary  schedule  for  the Chief Plant Operator would  likely be  required  to be  increased. The 
Chief Plant Operator position has been  challenging  to  fill due  to  the  complexity of operating  the Colfax 
plant  and  the  competitive market  and  salaries  for  certified  operators.    The  City  is  in  the  process  of 
completing the compensation study required in the current Union contract agreement, and the salaries of 
other wastewater agencies  in  the area are significantly higher  than Colfax.   The contract with Stationary 
Engineers Local 39  for represented positions expires this December, and negotiations with the Union are 
about to begin.  Staff will consult with the City Council and provide analysis and recommendations on the 
contract as a separate, future item. 
 

The City  currently has  its  two maintenance workers  serving as Operators  in Training  (OIT’s).   Both have 
passed their OIT Grade I exam and one has passed their OIT Grade II exam. Both are working toward getting 
their required on the job hours of experience to be considered for Operator status.  Staff recommends that 
Council  reviews  and  approves  the  attached  salary  schedule,  that  the City  advertises broadly  for  a Chief 
Plant Operator,  and  that  staff  reports  back  the  applicant  response.  An  analysis  and,  as  appropriate,  a 
recommendation for transition to in‐house staffing will be made to Council.  Training for OITs will continue 
toward hopeful certification and operational support at the wastewater treatment plant.  

ITEM 7C
1 of 14



2 
 

TECHNICAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATOR AND COMMUNITY SERVICE DIRECTOR POSITIONS  ‐ The City’s small 
size,  the  limited  number  of  City  staff,  and  the  necessity  for multiple  services  to  be  overseen  by  each 
position have resulted  in  job responsibilities exceeding  job descriptions currently  in place.   The Technical 
Services Administrator position has successfully assumed responsibilities above the  initial  job description 
approved in July 2013.   Of particular value and  importance to Colfax has been the responsibility taken for 
the regulatory and equipment oversight of the wastewater operations, and responsibility for building and 
equipment upkeep, which  had  fallen  behind.  The  Community  Services Director  position  had  previously 
emphasized building inspection functions, which represents only a small portion of the community services.  
Increased emphasis is needed on streets, storm drain and parks infrastructure.  A system for maintenance 
scheduling and work order tracking is also a high priority.  
 

The  attached  revised  job  descriptions  reflect  the  actual  current  functional  areas  for  the  positions,  the 
evolving  infrastructure needs and priorities and  resulting  responsibilities  for more accurate performance 
evaluation.    Staffing  vacancy  in  the  public works maintenance  area  is  being  evaluated,  and  a  separate 
recommendation for changes will be brought to Council when the review is complete.  Summer temporary 
maintenance  assistance  will  also  be  evaluated  with  a  recommendation  for  future  needs  based  on 
permanent staff recruitment success and operational workload.  Summer entry level maintenance staff are 
often used by cities to employ local students for seasonal maintenance when schools are out of session, a 
resource  Colfax may  have  used  in  the  past.    Staff  recommends  that  Council  reviews  and  approves  the 
attached job descriptions and salary schedule. 
 

ADMINISTRATION  POSITIONS  ‐  The  administration  position  vacated  by  the  previous  Clerk/Typist  is 
currently  filled with a part‐time contract  service.   The City has  two other administrative classifications – 
Administrative  Assistant/Community  Development  and  Accounting  Assistant.    Staff  and  the  Finance 
Director have reviewed the administrative positions, classifications and the actual operational demands on 
the staff.    It quickly became apparent that the existing position “Clerk Typist” description was dated and 
does  not  fit  the  actual  demands  of  the  position  vacated,  now  being  filled  via  temporary 
contract.   Additional administrative and financial support will be cost effective, particularly to complete all 
the accounting tasks that have not had the in–house staffing to do, or have been picked up at higher cost 
by  the  consulting  Finance  Director.    The  increased  business  activity  in  Colfax  has  also  put  additional 
demands  on  the  administrative  and  financial  positions.    Staff  recommends  the  attached,  revised  and 
consolidated new job description titled Customer Service Representative/Accounting Assistant and salary 
schedule for review and approval.  The current Clerk/Typist position is Union represented so the “meet and 
confer” process will be required before any implementation. Pending Council approval, staff will advertise 
for the revised administrative position.   
 

Ongoing  monitoring  of  the  positions  and  new  staffing  changes  will  continue,  with  additional 
recommendations  to Council  if determined necessary.   The Contract negotiation process with Stationary 
Engineers  Local  39 will  also  provide  opportunity  for  the  City  Council  to make  operational  and  staffing 
adjustments. 
 

CONCLUSION:   

Receive staff presentation, discuss  recruitment,  job description and salary schedule update, and approve 
Resolution 34‐2015 as appropriate. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1) Resolution 34-2015 
2) Job Descriptions 
3) Salary Schedule 

ITEM 7C
2 of 14



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 34-2015 
 

ADOPTING THE JOB DESCRIPTIONS FOR THE TECHNICAL SERVICES 
MANAGER, CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE/ACCOUNTING 

ASSISTANT AND COMMUNITY SERVICE DIRECTOR POSITIONS WITH 
REVISED SALARY SCHEDULES 

 
Whereas, recent staffing vacancies and the improving economic activity in Colfax 

have provided an opportunity to re-evaluate operational demands and update the job 
descriptions for a number of critical staff positions, and; 

 
Whereas, the City staff and consultants have reviewed the existing operational 

demands, position responsibilities, job descriptions and salary schedules, and; 
 
Whereas, the City staff and consultants recommended to the City Council the updated 

job descriptions and salary schedules for  the Technical Services Manager, Customer 
Service Representative/Accounting Assistant and Community Service Director positions. 

 
Now Therefore, Be It Resolved by the City Council of the City of Colfax:  The 

attached descriptions and salary schedule for the Technical Services Manager, Customer 
Service Representative/Accounting Assistant and Community Service Director positions 
are hereby adopted.  

 
Passed and Adopted this 12th day of August, 2015 by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   
 
 
 
     _____________________________________ 
       Kim A Douglass, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM 7C
3 of 14



1 | P a g e  
Revised 7/15/13 

Technical Services Administrator Manager Job Description 

(Proposed Changes in Blue) 

OVERVIEW 
The Technical Services Administrator (TSA) Manager (TSM) performs regular office duties and various technical 
works in an effort to improve and maintain the City’s technical infrastructure and improve the overall quality 
and quantity of work output from staff. This is realized by implementing innovations in modern computing 

technology and providing relevant staff training. The TSATSM’s role is diverse, requiring knowledge in an array of 
vocations and fields of study and primarily involves office or non‐manual work which is directly related to the 
City’s management or general business operations, a primary component of which involves the exercise of 

independent judgment and discretion about matters of significance. 

CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEE 
The TSA  TSM is a confidential City employee whose regular duties require him/her to access and develop or 
present management positions with respect to employer – employee relations or normally require access to 
confidential information that is used to contribute significantly to the development of management positions 
and policies and their implementation.  

KNOWLEDGE 
The TSATSM’s role requires knowledge and proficiency in Information Technology (IT), Information Systems (IS), 
digital graphic artistry & multi‐media production, web development/design/programming, computer hardware, 
and related peripherals. In addition, the TSATSM must possess a high‐level knowledge of mathematics, written 
English, and research skills, and be ableabilities to work independently and without assistance from others.   

REGULAR DUTIES 
 Support and maintain all computer systems, desktops, laptops, printers, and peripherals. This includes 

installing, diagnosing, repairing, maintaining, and upgrading all hardware and equipment while ensuring 
optimal performance. 

 Ensure the stable operation of the City‐wide computer network. This includes planning, developing, 
installing, configuring, maintaining, supporting, and optimizing all network hardware, software, and 
communication links. Ensure the stability and integrity of wireless network services. 

 Manage and oversee all facets of the wastewater treatment plant, including staff, equipment, treatment 
train operations, and NPDES permit compliance. Maintain a positive working relationship with the 
Regional Water Quality Control Board. Facilitate and oversee treatment plant improvement projects. 
Respond to emergencies as needed. Analyze and repair water quality monitoring instrumentation in a 
timely manner to minimize the length of effluent diversions.  

 Coordinate and collect wastewater data from a variety of sources and then develop, transpose, 
calculate, verify, and report this data to the State Water Quality Control Board. Perform preliminary 
analysis of wastewater sampling data, author most wastewater reports, and oversee wastewater 
treatment plant effluent compliance of the National Pollution Discharge Elimination System.  

 Manage the City’s sewer lift stations and collection system. Direct and oversee maintenance, repair, and 
replacement of pumps and associated equipment. Respond to emergencies as needed. Coordinate and 
direct staff and contractors to quickly and accurately identify and repair problems. Investigate citizen 
complaints. Maintain and utilize the sewer GIS database. 

 Respond to sanitary sewer overflows (SSOs), estimate number of gallons spilled, and contact all required 
State, regional, and local parties. Facilitate remediation of the overflow. Conduct reporting to the State 
CIWQS SSO system. 

Formatted: Centered

ITEM 7C
4 of 14



2 | P a g e  
Revised 7/15/13 

 Manage and coordinate the maintenance, repair, and upkeep of all City‐owned buildings, facilities, and 
associated equipment, including interior/exterior finishes, HVAC systems, lighting, electrical, plumbing, 
and data. Coordinate remodeling as needed. 

 Develop, program, update, maintain, and monitor the City's web site. This includes designing, building, 
and implementing new web pages, integration of back‐end applications, and performing day‐to‐day 
administration of the City's web portfolio. Use of a variety of web programming languages is required. 

 Envision, create, develop, and produce a variety of artwork for uses in a variety of applications and 
mediums. High‐quality bitmap and vector graphic creation, editing, layout composition, printing, and 
multi‐media production skills are required. 

 Develop and maintain consistency of the City’s image (“look and feel”) across a variety of platforms, 
including but not limited to: the City website, printed forms, letterhead, printed advertisements, and 
local‐access television channel.  

 Coordinate and implement Geographical Information System (GIS) based objectives and provide 
research results in a variety of formats including digital and printed maps. Preserve the integrity and 
design of the geographic information database and functions. 

 Deliver training to end users in the organization as to proven methods and best practices of using 
various types of software programs efficiently and effectively in support of relevant objectives. 

 Perform research on a multitude of subjects to quickly provide accurate and relevant information when 
and where needed. This includes information for in‐house, contractor, public, and outside government 
agencies. Gather information in a variety of ways and utilize logic, judgment, and practicality, together 
with mathematics and professional English skills, in order to properly convey concise information to 
required parties in the most effective manner. 

 Seek, investigate, analyze, interpret, and apply proven methods of eliminating monetary waste within 
the organization. Utilize the knowledge incurred from working across all departments to identify, 
expose, and eradicate unneeded and unnecessary expenditures of equipment, processes, consultation, 
staff time, and materials. 

 Research, compare, and ultimately make well‐educated purchasing decisions for equipment, products 
and services based on need and fund availability while taking into account existing products and 
equipment. Essentially, purchase only what is actually needed for the best possible price. 

 Assist the City Manager in the development and presentation of employer ‐ employee relations 
including accessing and evaluating confidential information that is used to contribute significantly to the 
development of management positions and policies and their implementation. 

 Assist the City Manager with research and provide concise reports on a variety of issues and concerns 
including but not limited to researching, reviewing and evaluating confidential City information in the 
course of these functions. 

 Assist staff and consultants in the course of day‐to‐day operations and special projects. 
 

ATYPICAL DUTIES 
• Because the City of Colfax has a small workforce, the Technical Services Administrator  Manager will be 

required to perform duties outside the scope of the “REGULAR DUTIES” listed above. Assistance with 
emergencies, events, special projects, and filling‐in for the regular duties of absent, key‐role employees 
will be required. 

 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS AND WORKING ENVIRONMENT 
Physical: Primary functions require sufficient physical ability to work in an office environment; walk, stand, and 
sit for prolonged periods of time; frequently stoop, bend, kneel, crouch, crawl, climb, reach, and twist; push, 
pull, lift, and/or carry moderate amounts of weights; verbally communicate to exchange information. 

ITEM 7C
5 of 14



3 | P a g e  
Revised 7/15/13 

Vision: See in the normal visual range with or without correction; vision sufficient to read computer screens and 
printed documents. 

Hearing: Hear in the normal audio range with or without correction. 

FLSA EXEMPT 
The TSATSM position is exempt from the provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act in that the job duties are 
primarily administrative involving office or non‐manual work which is directly related to management or general 
operations of the City and involves as a primary component the exercise of independent judgment about 
matters of significance.  

ITEM 7C
6 of 14



1 
 

CITY OF COLFAX 

Community Services Director 

 

August 12, 2015 August 11, 2009 

 
Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by employees in 
the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.  
 

DEFINITION	
	
Under general direction of the city manager, the Community Services Director is 
 responsible for the management of the City's infrastructure including capital improvement 
projects,  streets, 
 drainage system, public buildings, parks, wastewater treatment and collection, 
 street lights and traffic signage and controls.  This position also performs oversees the full range 
of building inspection duties involved in the inspection of routine and complex structural 
building systems at various stages of construction, alteration, and repair for compliance with 
approved plans and codes; conducts plumbing, electrical, and mechanical inspections; reviews 
building plans and specifications; and investigates violations and complaints, conducts 
enforcement actions, and secures compliance with building and zoning codes. Working with the 
city's engineer performs other field inspections associated with approved development and public 
works plans. The incumbent will exercise discretion in applying general goal and policy 
statements and in resolving organizational and service delivery problems and will participate in 
the development and implementation of goals, objectives, policies and priorities for assigned 
programs and ensure that assigned activities are completed in a timely and efficient manner 
consistent with defined policies and regulations. 
 

REPRESENTATIVE	DUTIES	
 

This position is a Department Head position responsible for all aspects of the Public Works and 
also acts as the City’s Building Official. The Community Services Director works closely with 
other City Department Heads in carrying out various aspects of the work including: the City 
 Engineer, City Planner, Law Enforcement and Fire Chiefs. The Community Services Director 
supervises the Public Works crew and will from time to time act on behalf 
 of the City Manager in his absence.  
 
Incumbents may not perform all of the listed duties and/or may be required to perform additional or 

ITEM 7C
7 of 14



2 
 

different duties from those set forth below to address business needs and changing business practices. 
1. Public Works:  Plans, organizes, directs and controls the operations of the Public Works 

and manages the day to day operations of the City's infrastructure.  Specific duties 
include:  

a. Continuous assessment of each of the City's major facilities, identification of 
items needing attention and the direction of personnel and resources to ensure 
facility needs are addressed.  

b. Develops and implements a budget for the Community Services Department.  
c. Reviews and authorizes expenditures. Recommends changes to budget as may be 

necessary.  
d. Oversees the day-to-day maintenance of streets, storm drains, public buildings, 

parks, pools,solid waste operations, landfill, wastewater collection and treatment 
facilities and traffic controls.  

e. Directly supervises public works crewmembers, makes assignments and conducts 
evaluations.  

f. Directs the maintenance on all city vehicles and the removal of snow from public 
streets.  

g. Meets with the general public and representatives of other agencies regarding 
work and or issues related to public infrastructure in the City.  

h. Works closely with the City Engineer in the development of Capital Improvement 
Programs.  

i. Interacts on behalf of the Department before the City Council, Planning 
Commission and other City commissions and boards.  
 

2. Building Official: Specific duties include: 
a. Overseeing pPerformance ofs field building inspections of complex industrial, 

commercial, and residential buildings during various stages of construction and 
remodeling to ensure that structures are being constructed in accordance with 
approved plans and specifications; inspection ofs all aspects of building 
construction, including plumbing, electrical, structural, and mechanical 
installations, for compliance with applicable codes, ordinances, and regulations 
and ensures the proper and safe installations of building systems; note defects in 
construction work and issues correction notices.  

b. Overseeing iInspection ofs foundation, cement, framing, plastering, and a large 
variety of routine and/or complex structural building systems and elements 
including checking stud, joist, rafter spacing, and other structural member 
factors; examining grade, quality, and treatment of lumber; and examining 
cement, lath, wire, and composition.  

c. Confers with, coordinates with, and provides information and assistance to 
architects, engineers, contractors, builders, and the general public in the field and 
office; explains and interprets applicable codes, ordinances, and zoning 
regulations, requirements, and restrictions.  

ITEM 7C
8 of 14



3 
 

d. Assists at the public counter; reviews plans and specifications; issues permits and 
collect fees. 

e. Makes field review of plans and specifications. 
f. Investigates building violations and complaints and conduct enforcement actions 

including preparation of letters or issuance of stop work orders for non-
compliance and expired permits.  

g. Works with Planning Director to cConducts zoning and general land use and 
code enforcement inspection work and performs follow-up investigations to 
ascertain remedial action has been taken, issues citations for code violations, 
prepares code violation cases for administrative hearing and as necessary for 
appeal hearings, compiles complete evidence files and exhibits; confers and 
coordinates with other agencies and the city attorney on investigation and 
disposition of nuisance housing, zone, building, sanitation and other code 
violations, responds to public inquiries regarding complaints, testifies in court 
proceedings as necessary. 

QUALIFICATIONS	
 

Knowledge of: 

1. Principles of construction, repair and maintenance for streets, sidewalks, drainage 
systems.  

2. Principles of construction, repair and maintenance for irrigation and pumping 
systems. 

3. Principles of estimating public projects. 
4. Principles of employee safety during construction projects.  
5. Principles of personnel management, supervision and training.  
6. Principles of budgeting and maintaining cost accounting records.  
7. Methods, materials, and progressive steps used in the construction of buildings and 

related structures.  
8. Pertinent uniform building related codes, ordinances, and regulations enforced by the 

City including the Uniform Building Code, plumbing, electrical, and mechanical 
codes, zoning ordinances, general land use codes, and related City codes.  

9. Principles and techniques used in building inspection work including those used to 
examine the quality of work and materials and to detect deviations from plans, 
regulations, and standard construction practices. 

10. Accepted building construction safety standards. 
11. Permit processing procedures. 

Ability to: 

1. Assess functional capacities of basic infrastructure including streets, drainage system, 
traffic control, solid waste operations and, parks and wastewater collection and 
treatment. 

ITEM 7C
9 of 14



4 
 

2. Understand, interpret, explain, and enforce provisions of applicable building, safety, 
and zoning codes and ordinance requirements to contractors, developers, and the 
general public. 

3. Perform the full range of building inspections including the more complex 
commercial and industrial related inspections.  

4. Examine workmanship and material and detect deviation from plans, regulations, and 
standard construction methods and requirements.  

5.  Determine that construction systems conform to City code requirements.  
6. Analyze, interpret and accurately check building plans and specifications.  
7. Enforce necessary regulations with firmness and tact.  
8. Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.  
9. Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the 

course of work. 
10. Use computer and other office tools and skills including word processing, creation of 

spreadsheets and database management efficiently.  

EXPERIENCE - Any combination of education and experience that would likely provide the 
required knowledge and abilities is qualifying. A typical way to obtain the knowledge and abilities would 
be:  

1. Equivalent to the completion of the twelfth grade supplemented by college level or 
specialized training in building inspectionpublic works, public administration,, 
building technology, architecture, engineering, or a related field.  

2. Five years of experience in a building trade and four years of experience as a 
Building Inspector.public or community services position 

 
LICENSE AND CERTIFICATES  
 

1. Possession of ICC or equivalent certifications as a Building, Plumbing, Electrical, 
Mechanical, Combination Building Inspector and Plans Examiner or ability to 
obtain/complete within a reasonable period of time. 

2. Possession of a valid driver's license. 
3. Possession of or ability to obtain a Zoning Inspector Certificate. 
4.3. Possession of or ability to obtain PC 832 – Code Enforcement Training. 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS AND WORKING ENVIRONMENT 

The conditions herein are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully perform 
the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with 

disabilities to perform the essential job junctions.  
 

1. Environment: Standard office setting with travel to various locations to attend 
meetings and to perform inspections; the employee often works in and around 
building and construction sites and in outside weather conditions.  

ITEM 7C
10 of 14



5 
 

2. Physical: Primary functions require sufficient physical ability to work in an office 
setting and in a field environment; walk, stand, and sit for prolonged periods of time; 
frequently stoop, bend, kneel, crouch, crawl, climb, reach, and twist; push, pull, lift, 
and/or carry moderate amounts of weights; operate assigned equipment and vehicles: 
verbally communicate to exchange information.  

3. Vision: See in the normal visual range with or without correction; vision sufficient to 
read computer screens and printed documents.  

4. Hearing: Hear in the normal audio range with or without correction.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This job specification should not be construed to imply that these requirements are the exclusive standards of the 
position. Not all duties are necessarily performed by each incumbent. Additionally, incumbents may be required to 
follow any other instructions and to perform any other related duties as may be required. 

ITEM 7C
11 of 14



1 | P a g e  
Revised 8/12/15 

 

Customer Service Representative/Accounting Assistant 

(Proposed) 

 

OVERVIEW 
Under the supervision of the City Manager the Customer Service Representative/Accounting Assistant (CSR/AA) 
performs administrative and office support functions for the City.  Functions include:  interacting with the 
general public providing key information and directing inquiries, providing a wide range of organization and 
clerical support, administering applications and permits under guidance of the Community Services Director and 
performing accounting duties under the direction of the Finance Director. 

CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEE 
This position is expected to provide lead administrative and clerical support to the Council and Administrative 
Staff.  This employee works independently with a minimum of supervision and practices a moderate amount of 
discretion.  Relative to personnel matters the employee is considered to be a confidential employee.  

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 

 Knowledge of City administrative practices, policies and procedures 

 Knowledge of basic accounting and billing procedures 

 Knowledge and practice of good customer service practices 

 Skill in oral and written communication 

 Skill in handling multiple tasks and prioritizing 

 Skill in using computers and related software 

 Skill in planning and organizing 

 Ability to establish and maintain effective communication and working relationships with city employees 
and the public 

 Ability to work with frequent interruptions and changes in priorities 

 Ability to handle conflict and uncertain situations 
 

REGULAR DUTIES 
 Answers telephone and greets members of the public visiting City Hall.  Provides detailed information 

regarding functions, responsibilities, and policies of the City or makes referrals to appropriate staff.  
 

 Assist public with event, planning, building and engineering applications. Route applications to proper 
staff and follow up as necessary. 
 

 Assist with application review process, the issuing of permits and collection of fees as applicable. 
 

 Collects and distributes mail to City Council and staff.  Maintains appointment calendar and prepares 
and maintains correspondence.  Assists in maintenance of City master files. 
 

 Performs all utility billing functions including:  maintaining and updating customer database, processing 
bi‐monthly billings, receiving and posting receipts, preparing bank deposits, and responding to customer 
inquiries.   

ITEM 7C
12 of 14



2 | P a g e  
Revised 8/12/15 

 

 

 Process Accounts Payable including:  Validating city expenses and obtaining appropriate approvals, 
coding and entering invoices into Accounts Payable and obtaining approvals for processing, printing 
checks and submitting for signature, responding to vendor inquiries and general filing. 
 

 Other accounting support. Process general cash receipts, assign fund accounting and enter to 
accounting system, and prepare bank deposits. Assist with preparation of payroll and payroll tax 
reporting. Process billing statements for Land Development accounts. 
 

 General office duties including filing, copying, mail distribution, ordering of supplies. 
 

 

ATYPICAL DUTIES 
• Because the City of Colfax has a small workforce, the CSR/AA will be required to perform duties outside 

the scope of the “REGULAR DUTIES” listed above. Assistance with emergencies, events, special projects, 
and filling‐in for the regular duties of absent, key‐role employees will be required. 

 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS AND WORKING ENVIRONMENT 
Physical: Primary functions require sufficient physical ability to work in an office environment; walk, stand, and 
sit for prolonged periods of time; frequently stoop, bend, kneel, crouch, crawl, climb, reach, and twist; push, 
pull, lift, and/or carry moderate amounts of weights; verbally communicate to exchange information. 

Vision: See in the normal visual range with or without correction; vision sufficient to read computer screens and 
printed documents. 

Hearing: Hear in the normal audio range with or without correction. 

TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE 

 Two to five years of increasingly responsible administrative experience 
o Experience involving public contact/customer service is desirable 
o Experience involving planning, engineering, and building policies is desirable 
o Accounting and/or bookkeeping experience is desirable 

 Graduation from High School or equivalent required 
o Emphasis on business related courses desired     

FLSA  
The CSR/AA position is non‐exempt in accordance with the provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act. 

ITEM 7C
13 of 14



1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5

Clerk Typist* Monthly 2,184.00 2,293.20 2,405.87 2,527.20 2,655.47 Clerk Typist* Monthly 2,270.67 2,384.20 2,503.41 2,628.58 2,760.01

Hourly 12.60 13.23 13.88 14.58 15.32 Hourly 13.10 13.76 14.44 15.16 15.92

Annual 26,208.00 27,518.40 28,870.40 30,326.40 31,865.60 Annual 27,248.00 28,610.40 30,040.92 31,542.97 33,120.11

City Clerk Monthly 3,083.60 3,239.60 3,404.27 3,570.67 3,750.93 City Clerk Monthly 3,206.67 3,367.00 3,535.35 3,712.12 3,897.72

Hourly 17.79 18.69 19.64 20.60 21.64 Hourly 18.50 19.43 20.40 21.42 22.49

Annual 37,003.20 38,875.20 40,851.20 42,848.00 45,011.20 Annual 38,480.00 40,404.00 42,424.20 44,545.41 46,772.68

Lead Mechanic* Monthly 3,704.13 3,889.60 4,085.47 4,290.00 4,503.20 Lead Mechanic* Monthly 3,704.13 3,889.60 4,085.47 4,290.00 4,503.20

Hourly 21.37 22.44 23.57 24.75 25.98 Hourly 21.37 22.44 23.57 24.75 25.98

Annual 44,449.60 46,675.20 49,025.60 51,480.00 54,038.40 Annual 44,449.60 46,675.20 49,025.60 51,480.00 54,038.40

Maintenance Worker I* Monthly 2,556.67 2,683.20 2,814.93 2,958.80 3,106.13 Maintenance Worker I* Monthly 2,556.67 2,683.20 2,814.93 2,958.80 3,106.13

Hourly 14.75 15.48 16.24 17.07 17.92 Hourly 14.75 15.48 16.24 17.07 17.92

Annual 30,680.00 32,198.40 33,779.20 35,505.60 37,273.60 Annual 30,680.00 32,198.40 33,779.20 35,505.60 37,273.60

Maintenance Worker II* Monthly 3,149.47 3,307.20 3,471.87 3,645.20 3,827.20 Maintenance Worker II* Monthly 3,149.47 3,307.20 3,471.87 3,645.20 3,827.20

Hourly 18.17 19.08 20.03 21.03 22.08 Hourly 18.17 19.08 20.03 21.03 22.08

Annual 37,793.60 39,686.40 41,662.40 43,742.40 45,926.40 Annual 37,793.60 39,686.40 41,662.40 43,742.40 45,926.40

Oil Recycling Coordinator Monthly 2,199.25 Oil Recycling Coordinator Monthly                                                       2,199.25

Hourly 12.69 Hourly 12.69

Annual 26,391.04 Annual 26,391.04

Operator in Training* Monthly 2,889.47 3,033.33 3,185.87 3,343.60 3,511.73 Operator in Training* Monthly 2,889.47 3,033.33 3,185.87 3,343.60 3,511.73

Hourly 16.67 17.50 18.38 19.29 20.26 Hourly 16.67 17.50 18.38 19.29 20.26

Annual 34,673.60 36,400.00 38,230.40 40,123.20 42,140.80 Annual 34,673.60 36,400.00 38,230.40 40,123.20 42,140.80

Operator II* Monthly 3,868.80 4,061.20 4,264.00 4,477.20 4,699.07 Operator II* Monthly 3,868.80 4,061.20 4,264.00 4,477.20 4,699.07

Hourly 22.32 23.43 24.60 25.83 27.11 Hourly 22.32 23.43 24.60 25.83 27.11

Annual 46,425.60 48,734.40 51,168.00 53,726.40 56,388.80 Annual 46,425.60 48,734.40 51,168.00 53,726.40 56,388.80

Operator III* Monthly 4,368.00 4,588.13 4,816.93 5,056.13 5,310.93 Operator III* Monthly 4,368.00 4,588.13 4,816.93 5,056.13 5,310.93

Hourly 25.20 26.47 27.79 29.17 30.64 Hourly 25.20 26.47 27.79 29.17 30.64

Annual 52,416.00 55,057.60 57,803.20 60,673.60 63,731.20 Annual 52,416.00 55,057.60 57,803.20 60,673.60 63,731.20

Chief Plant Operator* Monthly 4,586.40 4,816.93 5,057.87 5,309.20 5,576.13 Chief Plant Operator* Monthly 5,503.68 5,780.32 6,069.44 6,371.04 6,691.36

Hourly 26.46 27.79 29.18 30.63 32.17 Hourly 31.75 33.35 35.02 36.76 38.60

Annual 55,036.80 57,803.20 60,694.40 63,710.40 66,913.60 Annual 66,044.16 69,363.84 72,833.28 76,452.48 80,296.32

Accounting Assistant* Monthly 2,965.73 3,114.80 3,270.80 3,433.73 3,605.33 Accounting Assistant* Monthly 3,083.60 3,237.78 3,399.67 3,569.65 3,748.14

Hourly 17.11 17.97 18.87 19.81 20.80 Hourly 17.79 18.68 19.61 20.59 21.62

Annual 35,588.80 37,377.60 39,249.60 41,204.80 43,264.00 Annual 37,003.20 38,853.36 40,796.03 42,835.83 44,977.62

Administrative Assistant/ Monthly 3,655.60 3,837.60 4,030.00 4,231.07 4,442.53 Customer Service Representative/ Monthly 3,801.20 3,991.26 4,190.82 4,400.36 4,620.38

Community Development* Hourly 21.09 22.14 23.25 24.41 25.63 Accounting Assistant Hourly 21.93 23.03 24.18 25.39 26.66

Annual 43,867.20 46,051.20 48,360.00 50,772.80 53,310.40 Annual 45,614.40 47,895.12 50,289.88 52,804.37 55,444.59

Technical Services Administrator Monthly 4,537.87 4,764.93 5,002.40 5,253.73 5,515.47 Technical Services Manager Monthly 6,067.02 6,370.37 6,688.89 7,023.33 7,374.50

Hourly 26.18 27.49 28.86 30.31 31.82 Hourly 35.00 36.75 38.59 40.52 42.55

Annual 54,454.40 57,179.20 60,028.80 63,044.80 66,185.60 Annual 72,804.16 76,444.37 80,266.59 84,279.92 88,493.91

Community Services Director Monthly 6,760.00 Community Services Director Monthly 6,760.00 7,098.00 7,452.90 7,825.55 8,216.82

Hourly 39.00 Hourly 39.00 40.95 43.00 45.15 47.40

Annual 81,120.00 Annual 81,120.00 85,176.00 89,434.80 93,906.54 98,601.87

* Represented Position * Represented Position subject to Union negotiation, figures for comparison only

Proposed City of Colfax - Salary Range Schedule FY2015

 July 1, 2015-June 30, 2016

StepStep

City of Colfax - Salary Range Schedule FY2014

 July 1, 2014-June 30, 2015

ITEM 7C
14 of 14


	00A Agenda
	02A mPOWER
	2015-08-12 Staff Report mPower JPA
	mPower Description

	03A 150708 Minutes
	03B June Cash Summary
	2015-11 Staff Report Cash Summary June 2015
	150812 Cash Summary June Data

	03C Coastland Contract Inspection Services
	150812 SR Contract Coastland Building Inspector
	Resolution 29-2015 Contract Coastland Building Inspection Services
	Colfax Cover letter Rev Aug 5 2015
	August 5, 2015
	Subject:  As Needed Civil Site Inspection Services

	Sincerely,

	Contract
	Colfax Scope of Services Rev Aug 5 2015
	2015-16 Schedule of Hourly Rates

	03D Bureau Veritas Contract Building Inspection Services
	150812 SR Contract Bureau Veritas Building Inspector
	Resolution 30-2015 Contract Bureau Veritas Building Inspection Services
	7-10-2015 Colfax Agreement _ bv signed

	03E Gann Certification
	Gann Staff Report 2015-2016 
	150812 Gann Statistics
	Resolution 31-2015 Gann Appropriations Limitation

	03F Quarterly Investment Report 2nd Quarter 2015
	Quarterly Investment Report June 2015
	150812 June 2015 Quarterly Report Data

	03G Lift Station 2 Pumps Purchase
	150805 - Staff Report Lift Station 2 New Pumps - Phase 2
	Resolution 32-2015 Pumps at lift station 2
	150805 - Flo-Line Quote - LS2 Pumps - Phase 2

	06A Planning Commission Hearing - DRP Canyon Creek Storage
	Canyon Creek Staff Report
	Resolution 33-2015  Planning Commission DRP for Canyon Creek Mini Storage
	Resolution 33-2015 Exhibit A COA
	Cedar Storage Reduced size drawings
	Proposed Retaining Wall

	07B Grand Jury Response
	150812 Grand Jury Response Staff Report
	Grand Jury Report 2015
	Instructions for Respondents
	Policy Matrix

	07C Job Description Updates
	2015-08-12 Staff Report  Recruitment and Job Descript
	Resolution 34-2015 Job Description Updates
	130719 - TSA Job Description - Revised by Mick - Approved by Council July 24 2013 - REVISED July 24 2015 - NOT APPROVED (YET)
	2015-08-12 Community Services Director rev Job Descrip
	2015-08-12 Customer Service Representative - Draft 
	2015-08-12 CC 2015-2016 Salary Schedule 




